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Directors’ Profile
EEEEIT

Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung, aged 50, is Chairman of the Company. Mr.
Shum is responsible for the formulation and implementation of
corporate policies and strategies. Mr. Shum has over 20 years
of experience in international trading and investment in China.

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond, aged 50, is Managing
Director and the head of operations in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) of the Company. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Chiu had over 20 years’ experience in banking
and management. He has been involved in the financing
and supervision of business projects in the PRC since the
late 1980’s. During the last 10 years, Mr. Chiu held senior
positions in a number of businesses in the PRC and was in
charge of the management and control of a wide range of
projects.

Shum Chun, Lawrence, aged 30, supervises retail
operations and is involved in the financial affairs of the Group.
Mr. Shum graduated from the University of Saskatchewan with
a degree in Bachelor of Arts, majoring in Economics. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Shum has pursued a career in finance
and accountancy in an international accounting firm. He is the
son of Mr. Shum Siu Hung.

Cen Ziniu, aged 40, graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University and has been involved in trading businesses in
Hong Kong and China, holding senior managerial positions.
Mr. Cen has extensive experience in dealership management,
business formation and marketing. He is responsible for
market development of the Group and overseas operations.
He is a cousin of Mr. Shum Siu Hung.
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Non-executive Director

Wu Hong Cho, aged 63, graduated from the Law School
of the University of Hong Kong and had over 10 years’
experience practicing as a solicitor in Hong Kong prior to
leaving private practice. Since joining the commercial sector,
Mr. Wu had held senior positions and was in charge of
corporate financial matter in a number of public companies
in Hong Kong prior to joining the Company as an executive
director in 1998. Mr. Wu was re-designated non-executive
director from July 1, 2006. He is also the company secretary
of the Company and a director of several subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Wu is currently an executive director of C C
Land Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange and was an independent non-executive
director of Beiren Printing Machinery Holdings Limited from
1990 to 2008, a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony, aged 57. Mr. Cheung is an
associate member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Cheung graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (formerly: the Hong Kong Polytechnic)
with a higher diploma in Accountancy. Mr. Cheung has over
25 years of experience in account, finance and investment
banking profession specialising in equity/debt fund raising,
mergers and acquisition and corporate restructuring before
working with publicly listed companies undertaking corporate
management, planning and strategies development functions.

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict, aged 50, is a holder of a Master
of Science Degree in Applied Mechanics (Cranfield Institute
of Technology, U.K.) and a registered professional engineer
in Hong Kong and the U.K. Mr. Chan is the recipient of the
U.K. Institution of Mechanical Engineers Outstanding Project
Price Award, 1981. For the last 20 years, Mr. Chan has taken
up key management positions in engineering and technology
businesses in Hong Kong, ranging from pumping equipment
and control systems, mini-piling, and software and hardware
engineering businesses.
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Xu Mingshe, aged 53, was accredited a doctor’s degree in
economics by the Xiamen University. He graduated from the
Guangzhou Institute of Foreign Languages with a bachelor’s
degree in English, holds the title of Senior Economist, and
has over 20 years’ experience in the banking-finance field.
Since 1980, Dr. Xu has held in succession a series of position
in the top management level in banking sector in the PRC,
and has been well connected in the finance and corporate
sectors both in the PRC and overseas. Dr. Xu's expertise
ranges from public listings to project financing, syndicated
loan, debt restructuring and merge and acquisition. He has
taken part in a considerable number of overseas listing of
Chinese enterprises and other major fund raising exercises.
Dr. Xu was appointed as independent non-executive director
of the Company on July 1, 2006 and an independent non-
executive director of EPI (Holdings) Limited (a company listed
on Hong Kong Stock Exchange) on October 4, 2006.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

On behalf of NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | am delighted to present the audited financial
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the period from January 1 to December 31,
2008.

Despite the unfavorable global economic condition, the
Group continued to achieve high turnover growth in 2008.
Total turnover reached approximately HK$6,158,614,000, a
surge of 568.3% in comparison with that of approximately
HK$3,890,225,000 in 2007. After tax net earnings of the
Group increased to approximately HK$52,911,000, 4.9%
slightly higher than that of approximately HK$50,454,000 for
the year of 2007.

All along, the Group has attached importance to an
enterprising, yet prudent management. In those years when
the market condition was relatively stable, we successfully
achieved continual expansion of market share and steady
growth of profit. In year 2008, under the challenges of the
global financial crisis, we were able to continue the same
business achievements, and for the second successive year
we were awarded by the Economic Digest as one of the Hong
Kong Outstanding Enterprises in 2008. The management
approach that we are all along pursuing was further proven to
be effective in standing the test of changes. We shall, as in
the past, continue to take the same approach to combat any
unforeseeable market crisis.

The Group’s core business, liquified petroleum gas (“LPG”)
was not seriously affected despite the outbreak of the global
financial crisis in 2008. LPG being a kind of daily energy need
for the people in Southern China and many Asian countries,
its demand is relatively inelastic to the change of price and
economic situation. Also, in managing the LPG business,
we have adopted a low inventory, high turnover business
model which generates similar effect as the provision of
logistic service. Therefore, when international oil and gas
prices went down substantially in the fourth quarter of 2008,
we did not incur any economic loss and were able to retain
all term contract customers. The Group’s Zhuhai Terminal
continued to perform outstandingly in 2008. It accomplished
a throughput volume of more than 1,000,000 tons making it
the top importer (in terms of LPG import volume) contributing
about 25.23% of China’s total import volume as well as the
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top exporter (in terms of LPG export volume) contributing
about 38.21% of China’s total export volume. Our LPG
foundation and networking in Guangdong have now been
firmly established after years of dedication. In the coming
year, management focus will be put on further improvement
of our gross operating margin by committing ourselves to
streamline the downstream distribution channels, bypass
the unnecessary links in the supply chain and expand our
direct sales volume. We understand that the exploration and
expansion of direct sales require the support of additional
working capital, but we believe it is the most effective way to
enhance benefit contribution to our shareholders.

With respect to the electronics business, while we continued
to maintain certain trading volume of electronics components,
the focus had shifted to the development of cellular phones, a
business with more specific development path and planning.
The business volume of cellular phones for the developing
countries along Mekong River surged by about four times in
year 2008. It is considered to be a business with on-going
development potential and shall contribute stable earnings to
the Group.

In view of the fact that we are currently in an unfavorable
economic environment and may see further changes in
the financial market, the Group will take a more cautious
approach in its business and financial management to guard
against any unpredicted market crisis.

The Group proposes to declare a dividend of HK0.3 cent per

share for 2008.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
appreciation to all the Group’s employees for their dedicated
work and contribution in the past year.

Shum Siu Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, April 20, 2009
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Management Discussion And Analysis
EIRE 2 &l am MO

Executive Summary

The Group achieved an outstanding performance for the
year ended December 31, 2008 with Group total revenue
of approximately HK$6,158,614,000, a growth of 58.3%
comparing with that of approximately HK$3,890,225,000
for the year ended December 31, 2007. Profit attributable
to the equity holders of the Company for the year
ended December 31, 2008 amounted to approximately
HK$52,911,000, an increase of 4.9% comparing with
that of approximately HK$50,454,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2007. On October 13, 2008, the Company
concluded an open offer on the basis of one offer share
for each share held by the shareholders resulting in the
number of its shares doubling to 963,353,374 at the end
of year 2008. Accordingly, the basic earnings per share
for the year 2008 was HK8.48 cents, 10.9% lower than
that of HK9.52 cents for the year ended December 31,
2007.

In 2008, the total sales volume of the Group’s LPG
business was about 795,000 tons representing a 22.3%
growth comparing with that of 650,000 tons in 2007.
LPG turnover surged to approximately HK$5,702,341,000
representing 92.6% of the Group’s total turnover, and
an increase of 55.2% comparing with that of about
HK$3,673,610,000 in 2007. The turnover increase of
55.2% was disproportional to the sales volume growth
of 22.3%, which explains that the turnover growth was
attributable mainly to increase in price.

The turnover contribution of electronic components
and cellular phones (“Electronics”) amounted to
approximately HK$456,273,000 representing 7.4% of the
Group’s total turnover, a growth of 110.6% comparing
with that of approximately HK$216,615,000 for the year
2007.

In managing our LPG operation, we have all along
been adopting the policy of low inventory and high
turnover, and we are able to increase continually our
throughput tonnage with natural hedging of buying and
selling prices in our portfolio. The sudden drop of the
international LPG price by 60% in October therefore
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imposed minimal impact on our LPG earnings in 2008.
Apart from the hedging of prices, the exposure related
to currency difference are also hedged to the extent of
the settlement amount by financial instruments such
as direct forward contracts and non deliverable foreign
exchange. This quasi logistic service business model
proves its effectiveness in achieving rapid business
growth as well as mitigating the price fluctuation
risk, and will be persistently adopted for our further
development.

Despite the economic recession caused by the global
financial crisis towards the last quarter of 2008, the
Group’s LPG business is not adversely affected. In the
coming future, we also foresee minimal impact given the
following reasons:

(A) As an energy item, LPG is a daily necessity. Its
demand is relatively inelastic to the change in price
and economic situation. What will affect mostly
the demand for LPG is not the economic situation,
but the availability and supply of alternative energy
products such as natural gas and Dimethyl Ether
(“DME”).

(B) Our LPG business focuses on the market of
Guangdong and its neighboring areas. The
economy there is less affected relative to that of
the American and European markets. Besides, the
Chinese government has already taken measures
to promote the expansion of internal consumption
and the continuation of its economic development.
These measures, as we strongly believe, will
provide added impetus to the general demand for
energy products;

(C) The prices of international LPG and domestic LPG
have both come down substantially since November
2008. It helps to enhance the consumers’
affordability, expand the LPG application and
strengthen the competitiveness of LPG amongst
alternative energy products.
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2. LPG Business 2. BILWEF
2.1 Market (Guangdong) Situation 2.1 THR(PEREERS)EREHE

Units: ‘000 tons BT T 2006 2007 2008

Total Consumption mEEeE 5,460 100% 5,620 100% 4,581 100%
Source of Supply: PRS-

Refineries inside Guangdong HRRH{E TR 853 16% 1,130 20% 936 20%
Refineries outside Guangdong & 4Nk T 942 17% 1,800 2% 2,272 50%
Overseas ElhE O 3,665 67% 2,690 48% 1,373 30%

Source: Guangdong Oil and Gas Associations

The figures in the above table, give an immediate
impression that Guangdong’s demand for LPG has
shrank by about 1,000,000 tons in 2008, down
18.5% from that of 2007. The extent of reduction
indeed might create anxiety, linking it with the
global recession. This is however not the actual
situation. The gas consumption of Guangdong in
2008 is estimated to remain at about 5,700,000
tons, and it was met 80% by LPG (about 4,581,000
tons), 17% by natural gas (about 969,000 tons) and
about 3% by DME (about 171,000 tons).

Natural gas is employed mainly for substituting
coal and oil in power generation. Since household
users are not primarily the target customers, and
pipeline installation takes time, with respect to
Guangdong natural gas can at most replace LPG to
a very limited extent in the household gas market.
DME is a kind of additive to LPG. The government
regulation promulgated in January 2008 that allows
the adding of not more than 20% of DME into LPG,
provides DME with certain room for development.
Throughout year 2008, as the price of DME has
always been substantially below LPG (particularly,
the imported LPG) with highest price difference
of about RMB1,500 per ton, the adding of DME
indeed could help on profitability enhancement. The
demand for DME thus rose in 2008. Subsequent
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to the significant drop of LPG price commencing
October 2008, the price difference between DME
and LPG has been narrowed down to about
RMB400 per ton. The incentive of adding DME lost
its attractiveness, and the activities in this respect
are anticipated to slow down in 2009.

From January to October of 2008, the price of
international LPG rose continually reaching the
height of about US$1,000 per ton in July and
August. With the price staying at such high level,
ample price arbitrage and keen competition evolved
in the market.

1. In the past, Guangdong’s LPG demand relied
mostly on import, and the supply of the
domestic refineries could only satisfy about
20% of the market demand. Under such
situation, the domestic refineries naturally
followed the import gas price movement in
quoting their price (usually, about RMB100
to RMB200 per ton less). This tradition broke
when import price was extremely high and
LPG from other provinces was massively
brought into Guangdong to capitalize on the
price arbitrage. The domestic refineries were
no longer able to keep on taking import gas
price as the benchmark. They had to take into
account of the volume of LPG flowing into
Guangdong when they tended to make price
adjustment. As such, for most of the time
in 2008, refinery LPG from other provinces
indeed dictated the whole market price
movement. The significant decrease of import
volume and the stagnancy of wholesale price
became the inevitable outcome.

2. DME took from LPG a small portion of the
market because of its price advantage.
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From November 2008 to the present, the price of
international LPG dropped by 60%, and stayed
at the level of US$400 to US$450 per ton for
most of the time. Although the price temporarily
rose to about US$530 per ton in February 2009,
it went back to the US$400 to US$450 level in
March shortly after the rise. While the supply of
international LPG is going to increase in the near
future and shipping cost reduces because of the
global recession, the international price of LPG
is generally expected to remain in the range from
US$380 to US$530 per ton throughout the year
2009.

In March 2009, the average price of international
LPG was about US$410 per ton, and the terminals’
purchase cost therefore was about RMB3,400
per ton. During the same period of time, refinery
products were priced at about RMB3,500 to
RMB3,600 per ton. Obviously, there was not much
price difference between import LPG and refinery
products, and because of its quality stability, the
demand of import LPG surged. The price of DME
ranged from about RMB3,200 to RMB3,400 per
ton. Not much cost could be saved by adding DME
into LPG, discouraging a lot of the activities in this
respect.

Taking the approximately 700,000 tons of LPG
import volume of Guangdong in the first quarter of
2009 as a reference and according to a reportedly
30% scheduled production reduction for LPG
by refineries in the north of China, we estimate
that the Guangdong LPG supply will rebound to
5,000,000 to 5,400,000 tons in 2009. Domestic
production will share about 20% of the market.
Supply by refineries outside Guangdong will have a
lesser share of about 30% while that of import LPG
will rebound to 50%.
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Biisr Rt Rt EEMEHE R
SAEMIEN  MEMEERITE
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R RBIERE 2009 E B AN ES
Wi 3803 L& 530k T 2 &S -
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2.2 Business Situation 2.2 EBEER

The total volume of LPG purchased by the Group
in 2008 amounted to 795,000 tons. Our Zhuhai
Terminal imported 662,000 tons and exported
260,000 tons. Relative to Guangdong’s total import
volume of about 1,778,500 tons and the export
volume of about 405,600 tons, our Zhuhai Terminal
proudly became the top LPG importer (about 37%
of Guangdong’s total import volume) and the top
exporter (about 64% of Guangdong’s total import
volume) in 2008.

N & B 2008 F 1) R b | BB
488 #) /7950000 - i iEEE
BTHRENEABEIIEONES
4 A662,000M  BHOE24 A
260,000 M8 - 2008 F B H & i
0 &# 41,778,500 + ¥ H O
2 #) A405,60008 £ 5 - BRI
DeEkEEO25HE - K EEE
2008 F ERBAABEHE — K
BEREDBEVEEREAED
£37%) ARTASE — KKt
REOOBHEEEREABTOE
64%) °

The Group’s Purchase Categories REBNREER 2008 2007

Term Contract — refrigerated ship import cargo EORRRERBAR 366,000 tonsH 46% 220,000 tonskE 34%

Spot purchase — refrigerated ship import cargo ENRRWE ISR 240,000 tonsH 30% 285,000 tonsi 44%
Spot purchase — pressurized ship import cargo ENENWE NSRS 56,000 tonsh 7% 0 tonl 0%

Spot purchase — pressurized ship domestic cargo ~ BIAE I EHEITE 0 tonli§ 0%
Total purchase of Zhuhai Terminal KEEENATEE 662,000 tons 83%
Spot purchase — pressurized truck domestic cargo  EIREE hE SE &I E 133,000 tonsH 17%

The Group’s total purchase TEBEREE 795,000 tonsH 100%

517,000 tonskE 80%
133,000 tonsl 20%

I
I
I
12,000 tonsh 2%
I
I
650,000 tonsli 100%

Refrigerated cargoes were mainly provided by
international suppliers including Geogas, Statoil,
Total, Glencore, Vitol, Naftomar and Petrodec.
In 2008, term contracts were entered into with
Geogas and Statoil to replace Glencore and Vitol.
18 shipments (each shipment of about 22,000 tons)
were supplied to us regularly with price determined
in link with LPG index. The spot purchases of
refrigerated cargoes were mainly priced in link
with LPG index and partly fixed. Pressurized
cargoes were supplied mainly by Sinopec Hong
Kong, Sojitz, Formosa, Caltex and SHV, all on
fixed price basis. Pressurized truck cargoes were
mainly supplied domestically in China by Maoming
Petrochemicals, Guangzhou Petrochemicals, Zhuhai

EOLRREMNTEHEDE
& Geogas * Statoil * Total -
Glencore  Vitol * Naftomar &
Petrodec ° £ # Geogas K Statoil
X T Glencore K& Vitol + LA & S
ARMEEREHFHENELS - £
2008F A E HARE T 18M (T M
#)22,000M8) 2 RE < BIHISRE
MIERER&EEZ R R IEEG
B LoREHFMESNEEE - #
AEOMENEZESHEYNBIESS
A1t ~ Sojitz + Formosa * Caltex
NMSHV 23 ABNERER IS
WETE BRNBEHBEEHEEH
EEmeExEalt - BMNAL - 2k
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BEE - fEmAl - wMitFEPI At

Hengagin Gas Processing Plant, Hunan Changling

Petrochemicals, Hubei Jingmen Petrochemicals and Lo RELEANRBAMRENS
etc. All these purchases were transported directly B 2IHRmEEEEEEET

BEFTMIEAMETEZR -

from the refineries to the Group’s bottle filling
plants for retailing purpose.

The Group’s Sales Categories REBNHEERR 2008 2007

Term contract — re-export RREORSAR 238,000 tons/ 30% 135,000 tonsl 21%
Spot sales — re-export FEREOSHEE 21,000 tonsh 3% 14,000 tonsh 2%
Term contract — domestic sales BRREBAFP 101,000 tonsh 12% 79,000 tonsli 12%
Sales under Joint Purchase Arrangement BErEaRESRP 103,000 tonsh 13% 125,000 tonshE 19%
Spot domestic sales WAV HE 137,000 tons 17% 119,000 tonsh 19%
Total sales of Zhuhai Terminal REBEHRE 600,000 tonsH§ 75% 472,000 tonsh 73%
Sales of retailers Sales volume FHRMEEHS 195,000 tonsHf 25% 178,000 tonsl 27%

I

The Group’s total sales rEAANEE

The major overseas customers of our LPG
wholesaling included Sinopec Hong Kong, Sojitz
Japan and E1 Corporation Korea. The major local
customers in China included Guangzhou Lianxin
(the auto-gas operator in Guangzhou), Guangzhou
SHV, Zhuhai Gas and Puning Zhonghong. Sales
in this respect were on term contracts or joint
purchase agreement with the prices determined
in link with LPG index or on cost plus basis. All
spot sales (both overseas and local) were on fixed
prices determined in accordance with the then
market situation.

In conclusion, the Group is considered quite
successfully in expanding its LPG business again
in 2008 with market share enhancement depite the
prominent shrink of the Guangdong market.

Units: ‘000 tons Bl TH

Total consumption of Guangdong (A) BREEEREN
Total sales of the Group AEFRHEES
Less: Re-export o AE

Domestic sales of the Group (B)

AEEBNEEE (B)
Group’s market share in Guangdong (B)/(A) ZA&B{EERT &4 % (B)/(A)

795,000 tonsh 100% 650,000 tonsli 100%

REXBONEIEPETERESR
B H At B A Sojitz & 8 B E1
Corporation s IR EERKF B
FEME AR (EMNAENRE
BE) s BINSHV - ZREE& A
A EERLRES - GEFERP
ARTTREERAXBERES
A - REA RBE R RIEEGT
B - mia PR LA A A E T
B FARBEE (EwmEEINK
BA) » HERBZRRERTHSEN
EEBE -

l

BREBREERENBRILAERES
2008 FHEEHBMNEL - B
AEBEERNEESRMA AT
hn e

2008 2007
4,581 5,620
795 650
(260) (149)
535 501
11.68% 8.91%
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Should the export volume of Guangdong be
counted, the total demand of Guangdong amounts
to about 5,000,000 tons and our Group’s market
share shall become 16%.

Wholesale Business

The Group’s LPG wholesale business is all conducted
through our Zhuhai Terminal. The majority of the
transactions are priced in link with international LPG
index, generating a natural hedge of the buying and
selling prices and fixed gross margin. This trading model
is equivalent to logistic service rendering. It effectively
helps to achieve rapid growth of business as well as
mitigation of price fluctuation risk.

In 2008, the Group’s LPG wholesaling volume reached
approximately 600,000 tons, a growth of about 27%
comparing with that of 472,000 tons in 2007. Amongst all
sales categories, the export volume increased by about
74% to 260,000 tons comparing with that of 149,000
tons in 2007. It is the key contributor to the Group’s
overall wholesaling growth. Domestic wholesaling in
China recorded a slight increase of 5% to about 340,000
tons comparing with that of 323,000 tons in 2007.
Guangzhou Lianxin, the auto-gas operator, became the
single largest customer domestically. Supply to Lianxin
rose by about 28% in 2008 comparing with that of
2007. With respect to joint purchase arrangement, as
the international LPG price always stayed at relatively
high level in the first 10 months, not many transactions
could be done initially. When the price went down
in November, the cooperation with Guangzhou SHV
resumed, and in just the last two months, about 56,000
tons of sales was concluded resulting in the total
annual sales under joint venture arrangement surging
to 103,000 tons and that exceeded our target for 37%
(approximately 75,000 tons) by the end of 2007.

In conclusion, although most of the time in 2008, the
entire business environment was quite unfavorable, we
were able to meet all our business targets and achieve
encouraging performance.

ELEREARELREODE2:TERE
N BEREMBEEEEBESR
5,000,000M8 7= f7 + 1 7 £ [ A

HEREMENERLB16% L
E o
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600,000 Lt ¥f 2007 4F 472,000 WE
FATRB2T% HEhEE OKE
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Retail Business

In early 2008, the Group decided to set up a wholly
foreign owned investment holding company in China
responsible for all the Group’s LPG retail business as
well as domestic gas trading. The company, namely
Zhuhai NewOcean Energy Technology Co. Ltd.
(“NewOcean Technology”), was incorporated in Zhuhai
on May 19, 2008. The principal functions of NewOcean
Technology include:

1. to hold the equity of all subsidiaries of the Group
that operate LPG retails business and any further
acquisitions — within year 2008, the shareholdings
of Deging Nanxiong Station and Shenzhen Baorun
Station had been transferred to NewOcean
Technology. The share transfer of other stations
was subsequently completed in March 2009. In
addition, NewOcean Technology also entered into
an agreement to acquire EKEM=IGRRAMR A

(MxE=K1);

2. to perform as the purchase center for domestic
LPG of the Group and to arrange internal
allocation of the cargoes to the retail operations —
in 2008, NewOcean Technology has established
close business relationship with the refineries
in Guangdong and the neighboring provinces.
Preferential rate of discount is given for bulk
purchase which laid down a solid foundation for
the Group’s retail subsidiaries to further reduce the
cost of domestic LPG purchase;

3. to formulate the development strategies of LPG
retail business and to monitor daily operation
thereof — within year 2008, NewOcean Technology
had developed a set of procedures and guidelines
for managing risks associated to credit sales,
hence paving the way for all the retail subsidiaries
to expanding direct sales to commercial customers
in a prudent manner.

Despite the fact that the Group’s LPG retail sales
volume in 2008 did surge by 9.6% to about 195,000
tons as compared with that of about 178,000 tons

& B 7 2008 F F R E A B AKX
T—RINEBENERAREELEE
BAMAERIERNTEEH RERRE
TEERNES - ZARIR 200845 A
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in 2007, such volume was below our target of about
240,000 tons in 2007. Failure to meet the target
was mainly due to shrinkage of the Guangdong LPG
market by 20% (mainly in the retail market) and the
anticipated sales contribution of Maoming Sanyang not
being substantiated as a result of defer of acquisition
completion to 2009.

Business Outlook

We reckon that the Guangdong LPG market will have
two major changes in 2009:

1. The international LPG price has already gone back
to the 2004 level; the demand of import LPG shall
obviously rebound;

2. The LPG consumption of Guangdong will increase
as a result of the price reduction.

Based on the above prediction, we expect to achieve
a sales volume growth of 5% reaching about 840,000
tons in 2009. The total sales volume will comprise
approximately 620,000 tons of wholesaling and
approximately 220,000 tons of retailing. Notwithstanding
the growth in sales volume, the Group’s LPG revenue
will reduce in 2009 because of the 50% cut in market
price.

The management of the Group has set the improvement
of gross margin as the major task of our LPG operation
in 2009. For wholesaling, the fixed margin that will be
generated from export term contracts, domestic sales
term contracts and the joint purchase agreement have
all been raised when the contracts are renewed. For
retailing, all the subsidiaries are striving to improve their
operating gross margin by promoting direct sales to the
commercial customers and reducing their transactions
with the bottle wholesalers.
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Zhuhai terminal is still processing on its application to
build two additional 5,000 tons class berths along the
terminal’s coastal line. The environmental evaluation
work has just started in March 2009, and all approvals
are anticipated to be in place by mid 2009. Although in
the meantime, the economic certainty in the near future
can hardly be assured, in order to further strengthen
the competitiveness of our Zhuhai Terminal, we shall
continue to pursue this project subject to the availability
of term bank financing.

Electronics Business

For year 2008, the turnover of the Group’s electronics
business amounted to about HK$456,273,000 which
doubled that of approximately HK$216,615,000 in 2007.
The electronics components trading contributed a
turnover of about HK$170,605,000 which was more or
less the same as that of 2007. The turnover of cellular
phone business surged to about HK$285,668,000,
an increase of about 385.5% comparing with that of
approximately HK$58,837,000 in 2007.

In 2008, by adopting the business model for previous
years, the Group continued its cooperation with Newtel
Corporation Co. Ltd. (“Newtel”) of Thailand to develop
the cellular phone business. Initially, the developing
countries along the Mekong River have been identified
as the target market, but in order not to take high risk
of currency depreciation that happened in the middle
of the year, both parties agreed to put on hold further
development in the Vietnam market. Thailand then
became the major country for expansion. Despite the
political uncertainty in Thailand in the second half of
2008, the demand for medium to low class cellular
phones had not been adversely affected. According
to Newtel, the “Wellcome” brand owned by Newtel
now ranks the third in the Thai cellular phone market,
signifying that a solid foundation of Wellcome has been
established. All in all, the Group and Newtel are having
very smooth cooperation. Payments are continued to
be made by Newtel punctually. Much higher profit is
expected to come from this business in the future.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at December 31, 2008, the net current assets of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$19,938,000 (2007:
HK$13,722,000) and the Group’s bank balances and cash was
approximately HK$143,756,000 (2007: HK$105,968,000). At
the balance sheet date, current ratio was 1.01:1 (2007: 1.01:1),
quick ratio was 0.94:1 (2007: 0.93:1), gearing ratio was 0.73:1
(2007: 0.77:1) which was calculated based on total liabilities of
approximately HK$1,982,655,000 (2007: HK$1,795,689,000)
and total assets of approximately HK$2,700,263,000 (2007:
HK$2,319,532,000).

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at
December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Pledge of Assets

At December 31, 2008, the Group pledged its bank
deposits amounting to approximately HK$732,199,000
(2007: HK$755,375,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group. The bank loans of the Group comprise
of an amount of approximately HK$147,198,000 (2007:
HK$171,160,000) drawn under a term loan facility secured
by a floating charge over the assets of the Company, and by
share mortgages of the issued capital and floating charges
over the assets of Sound Hong Kong Limited and NewOcean
(Shenzhen) Energy Investment Limited which are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company.
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Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at December 31, 2008, the Group employed approximately
520 full time employees in Hong Kong, Macau and the
PRC. The Group remunerated the employees based on their
performance, experience and prevailing market practice.
Employee benefits provided by the Group include a provident
fund scheme, medical insurance scheme and an employee
share option scheme.

& 8 5 i & iy 3%

MH2008F 12 A31H  AEBMNEE - R
MABERL52052HEE - AEEKREE
IZ2IKRE £REERTMSELIHRS
BT AEBEZEIRABERHEATES
MR BERREXIESBRETS -




22 | NewOcean Energy Holidings Limited #7/88¢B& M ERAF

Corporate Governance Report

PEERWMS

The Company is committed to good corporate governance
principles. Its Board recognizes that an effective corporate
management framework and a high governance standard are
both essential to the Company’s long-term development.

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended December 31, 2008 the Company
applied the principles and complied with all code provisions
as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”), save for a deviation
from the provision governing tenure of non-executive directors
mentioned below.

Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for specific term, subject to
re-election. The Company deviated from this provision in
that none of the non-executive directors are appointed for
a fixed term, instead their tenure of office are governed by
the provisions for retirement by rotation and re-election as
provided in the Bye-laws of the Company. (These provisions
are described in the paragraph headed “Non-executive
Directors” below). The Board believes that the fixing of the
tenure of non-executive directors and the shareholders’ right
to re-elect retiring non-executive directors as contained in the
Bye-laws will serve the long term interests of the Company.
In the opinion of the Board, the measures adopted by the
Company are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

Directors’ Securities Transaction

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors.
Following specific enquiry by the Company, all directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code during the year.
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Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises four executive directors, one
non-executive director and three independent non-executive
directors. Biographical details of all directors of the Company
are set out in the paragraph headed “Directors’ Profile” on
page 4 to page 6.

Membership of the Board during the year ended December
31, 2008 were as follows:

Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond (Managing Director)
Shum Chun, Lawrence

Cen Ziniu

Non-executive Director
Wu Hong Cho
Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict
Dr. Xu Mingshe

Executive director Shum Chun, Lawrence is the son of Shum
Siu Hung, Chairman of the Company and a cousin of Cen
Ziniu, executive director of the Company.

The Board is vested with the following roles and functions,
with operational decisions and execution delegated to the
management:

° To establish the strategic direction for the development
of the Company. To determine and keep under review
the objectives of the management and ways to achieve
these objectives;

° To approve annual budgets, major funding proposals
and investment proposals and monitor their execution;
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Board of Directors (Continued) EE®(E)

o To decide on matters such as annual and interim results, . REWNFENPEHES BEALS &
major transactions, directors appointment, dividend and BRI MREMEHRESEE
accounting policies; and &

e To oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy o MEANTHANEE  RRER - 8

BiE MET BTN ERIEF o

of internal controls, risk management, financial reporting
and compliance.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, Board EEee I REE(LARAWMER
meetings are initiated by the Chairman and all directors are B SZFRLAEZEREA - MEESEH

consulted on the agenda. Procedures are established for all
directors to have free access to board papers and related
information, to review the Group’s internal control, and to have
the services of the Company Secretary to ensure matters
are transacted in the Board in accordance applicable rules
and practices. Directors may seek independent professional
advice upon reasonable request to discharge their duties.

Proposed regular Board meeting schedule for the current year
is circulated to the Board in the preceding year. The following
table shows the attendance of directors at meetings of the
Board during the year ended December 31, 2008:

ARBEERINEFREEFTS X RIAR
Bl EHEEZ AMEERBRGARME
MiHE)  EREFSRFHETHAAEEMRD
RAIRKRD - EFREREMNERTFRE
TEERRNBTERE -

AEERETEAACESSSERARENA
—FEEETLERH - TREATEZ2008F 12
A31BIFERSEENEFETeR2HE
4woek

Number of Meetings

Name of director Attended
EEfA HESBEXRE
Executive Directors: HITEE -

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman) SE(FRE) 5/5
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond (Managing Director) AR R (EFAAEHE) 5/5
Shum Chun, Lawrence == 5/5
Cen Ziniu ZF4 5/5
Non-executive Directors: FENTTEF -

Wu Hong Cho HRE 5/5
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUINTESE -

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony iR 8§97 5/5
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict [RB /& 5/5
Dr. Xu Mingshe ®wEMAEBL 5/5
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Chairman and Managing Director

The offices of Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company are separated by written guidelines adopted by
the Board to ensure a clear division of responsibilities.
The Chairman is vested with leadership of the Board. His
duties include initiating the formulation of objectives and
strategies, providing relevant information and mobilizing the
collective resources of the directors in the Board’s roles and
functions. The Managing Director reports to the Board and
is responsible for leadership of the management, and for
execution of business strategies and front-line execution.

Non-executive Directors

As at the date of this report, four members of the Board
are non-executive directors, of whom three are independent
non-executive directors. The term of appointment of non-
executive directors is governed by the Company’s Bye-laws
pursuant to which at each annual general meeting one-third
of the Directors of the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that the
chairman of the Board and/or the managing director of the
Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject to
retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining
the number of Directors to retire in each year.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board has assessed their independence and concluded
that all the independent non-executive directors are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.
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Board Committees

The Board has set up two Committees in accordance with
the CG Code, namely the Remuneration Committee and the
Audit Committee. The Board has not set up a Nomination
Committee, the establishment of which is a recommended
best practice by the Stock Exchange, and the function of
nomination of new directors is undertaken by the full Board.
Under the Company’s Bye-laws, the Board has the power
from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a
director either to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the
Board, subject to authorization by the shareholders in general
meeting. Such power is also exercised by the full Board in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In addition to the Remuneration Committee and the Audit
Committee, the Board has set up an Executive Committee
comprising all executive directors on the Board. Under its
terms of reference, the Executive Committee is responsible
for the oversight of the management of the Group and the
formulation of administrative guidelines.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee that are in line with the principles
of the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee comprises
three independent non-executive directors and two executive
directors as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Shum Chun, Lawrence

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring
formal and transparent procedures for developing
remuneration policies and overseeing the remuneration
packages of the executive directors and senior management.
It takes into consideration on factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of Directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee meets at least once a year to access the
performance and review the annual salaries and bonus of the
senior executives.
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Remuneration Committee (Continued)

Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held in
the year 2008 to review, among other things, the remuneration
packages of the Chairman and the executive directors and
the attendance of each member is as follows:

FNER®(Z)
HMEESR2008FEANBH2 . ZE - MU

%ﬁzf&ﬂmi%Z T A o BRIKE
ZHRRIT

Number of Meetings

Name of Member Attended
REHE HESRRE
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman) SRR (ZESELE) 2/2
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict BRIESE 2/2
Dr. Xu Mingshe HmAEtiELT 2/2
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond AR 2/2
Shum Chun, Lawrence 2R 2/2
Audit Committee EEES®

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the Audit
Committee that are in line with the principles of the CG
Code. The Audit Committee comprises all independent non-
executive directors on the Board as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the
objectivity and credibility of financial reporting and internal
control procedures as well as to maintain an appropriate

relationship with the external auditors of the Company.

The Audit Committee met twice during the year 2008 during
which the following matters were reviewed and discussed:

° Auditing and financial reporting matters;

° Appointment and remuneration of external auditors;

° Non-auditing work of external auditors;

° Maintenance of the Group’s internal control system; and

° Review of interim results and audited financial
statements.
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Audit Committee (Continued)

Attendance of each member of the Audit Committee at

meeting during the year is as follows:

Name of Member

RE®A
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict
Dr. Xu Mingshe

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable
to the Company’s auditor’s, Messrs. Deloitte Touche

Tohmatsu is set out as follows:

Services rendered
Audit services
Non-audit services

Total

ERERg(2)
REENEZZESEUXNE L FERXEHEW
T
Number of Meetings
Attended
HEEBERE
KB (ZEEELE) 2/2
BRABIZE 2/2
HmAETIET 2/2
LW &

REBEFER - BN BN TARB KM
B eBER T GENTTZERANT

Fees paid/payable

gt ENER
HK$’000
FET

RIEREE
EBi R 1,997
E ey i 1,007

A 3,004
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Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness. The management
of the Company has established a set of comprehensive
policies, standards and procedures in areas of operational,
financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance
against the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The evaluation of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control is conducted by the internal audit function of the
management on an on-going basis, and the responsible
personnel will directly report to the Audit Committee on any
significant finding on internal controls.

Through out the year 2008, the Company complied with the
code provisions on internal controls as stipulated in the CG
Code. During the year the Company conducted a full review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group
and discussed the assessment bases with the management.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Group and ensuring that
the financial statements are in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on page
41.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2008.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Group was
principally engaged in the sale and distribution of liquefied
petroleum gas and sales of electronic products.

Results and Appropriation

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2008 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 43.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HKO0.3 cent per share to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members on June 10, 2009
amounting to approximately HK$2,890,060. At April 20, 2009,
the number of shares issued and fully paid is 963,353,374.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spent approximately
HK$56,842,000 on property, plant and equipment to expand
and upgrade its gas plant.

Details of these and other movements during the year in
property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Reserves

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at December 31, 2008 were as follows:

BARR
TRE 4 A

Contributed surplus
Retained earnings

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is available
for distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay
a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus
if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium accounts.

Raising of Funds and Use of Proceeds

On August 8, 2008, the Company proposed 1-for-1 open
offer at a subscription price of HK$0.30 per share to raise
approximately HK$144,503,000 new share capital. The
open offer has been completed and 481,676,687 shares of
HK$0.10 each of the Company were duly issued and allotted
on October 13, 2008. The net proceeds raised were used for
general working capital purposes.

]
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Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer of the Group by itself and taken
together with the next four largest customers accounted for
14% and 52% respectively of the Group’s total turnover for
the year.

The largest supplier of the Group by itself and taken together
with the next four largest suppliers accounted for 29% and
63% respectively of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate
of a director, or a shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) have an interest in any of the
Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended December 31, 2008.

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond
Shum Chun, Lawrence

Cen Ziniu

Non-executive director:

Wu Hong Cho
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Directors (Continued)
Independent non-executive directors:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict
Xu Mingshe

In accordance with clauses 86 and 87 of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Mr. Wu Hong Cho, non-executive director and Mr.
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict, independent non-executive director
shall retire by rotation from office at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. All the retiring directors,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as directors.

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The term of office for each non-executive director is the
period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.
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hziga

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares

MR2008F12A31H  EERTETHAE
MPEEZHBANRARG REAEEE 2K
B RBERDT  MEARRBREZESRR
B G 01 55 352 168 7F R0 8% 122 16491 B ekt i 75
BEZERMAER  REEELTARE
BRTEBEHFRHZBRETRRE  AHNEAR
NEIRBRFTZ R mnT

At December 31, 2008, the interests of the directors and chief
executives and their associates in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies, were as follows:

(a) Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (a) FAFEBRMEEO10ETEERAPZI
of the Company =1

Percentage
of the issued

Number of share capital

issued ordinary

of the Company

shares held oL F 3/
Name of director Capacity FrISERTT ERTRG
EENR 215 EERAE Bink
Shum Siu Hung Beneficial owner 43,549,558 4.52%
Stk BB A
Family interest (note 1) 490,779,280 50.94%
Rtz (ftat1)
534,328,838 55.46%
Shum Chun, Lawrence Other (note 2) 73,616,892 7.64%
L& H b (HiaE2)
Cen Ziniu Other (note 2) 4,907,793 0.51%
EF4 H b (HiaE2)
Wu Hong Cho Other (note 2) 24,538,964 2.55%
EE H b (HiaE2)
Notes: Bifsr
1. 490,779,280 shares were deemed to be interested by 1. SOHHERANRERBE/NAEAR

RAFEBRHRZ—) BTFEBERSHE
FT#% 490,779,280 I8 2 IR D HE B #E % ©

Shum Siu Hung, spouse of Tong Shiu Ming (a substantial
shareholder of the Company) and father of Shum Chun,
Lawrence and Shum Ho, Neo.

BRAZEZTVEBIERERAB(E
Hﬁ‘vl)ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂ’ﬂi AR 17 7 25 19 LE 71
o KA @] Z 490,779, zsoﬁxﬁxf‘

2. These interests represent interests in shares of 2.
the Company held proportional through Uniocean
Investments Limited (“Uniocean”). 490,779,280 shares
of the Company are held by Uniocean. Uniocean which ,iH A mSEAZE - 2%
is owned as to 15% by Shum Chun, Lawrence, 15% by BN EERSEFF D7 %ﬁ
Shum Ho, Neo, 64% by Tong Shiu Ming, 5% by Wu Hong 15% ~ 15% ~ 64% ~ 5% ;1%
Cho and 1% by Cen Ziniu.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares (Continued)

(b) Share options

Name of executive director Capacity

BITESEMR 517

Shum Siu Hung Beneficial owner
e EmEBA
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond Beneficial owner
i g EnlEAA

Name of independent
non-executive director Capacity

BIUFRTEEHRSR S

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony  Beneficial owner
w5 BB A

Other than as disclosed above and nominee shares in certain
subsidiaries held by certain directors in trust for the Group,
none of the directors, chief executives nor their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at December 31, 2008.

EEREFETHRARRKGREMEG
thezfa(2)
(b) BRI
Number of
Number of underlying
options held shares

FRISMARENE FMSHERRGE

9,940,358 9,940,358
6,626,905 6,626,905
16,567,263 16,567,263
Number of

Number of underlying
options held shares

FRISMARENE FMiSHERRGEE

1,104,484 1,104,484

BREXFHEZEERE TESRERNEEHUE
AEAMRETHBARBE CREARD
N FA2008F 12 A31H ' &F&EF - TE17
BAERBEEEZBMBEATIUERELRR
R BHMERRIZBHERIRE °
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Share options BE g
Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes are set KRR ZBRETEFBIANGRAEPBIHRE
out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements. F5E 30 °
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s TREBANAFNEREZEZE
share options during the year:
Outstanding Adjusted Outstanding
at on at
Option 1.1.2008 10.13.2008 12.31.2008
type #1.1.2008 #10.13.2008 #12.31.2008
x5 HRITE RE RRITE
(Note)
(K15t)
Category 1: Directors
SE1:ESF
Shum Siu Hung 2006B 9,000,000 940,358 9,940,358
S0
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond 2006B 6,000,000 626,905 6,626,905
AR
Total directors 15,000,000 1,567,263 16,567,263
EEEY
Category 2: Independent
Non-Executive Directors
2 BUFATESE
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony 2006B 1,000,000 104,484 1,104,484
ik 89796
Category 3: Employees
SMW3: AL
2006A 13,500,000 1,410,537 14,910,537
29,500,000 3,082,284 32,682,284
Note: The number and the exercise price of options which remained Mzt - AR ATNR2008F 10 B13HEIT T A
outstanding have been adjusted due to open offer of shares FEE  WMEHMATE ZERENEE
in the Company with effect from October 13, 2008. RITEEERAE
\
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Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company or their respective spouses or children under the
age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Directors’/Controlling Shareholders’
Interests in Contracts of Significance

Details of related party transactions during the year are set
out in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts of significance
to which the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director or a
controlling shareholder of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly in any contract,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Substantial Shareholders

As at December 31, 2008, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance shows that the
following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant
interests and short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company.

MERNRRFZRH
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Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

(a) Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
of the Company

EERRE)

(a)

issued ordinary
shares held of the Company

REQTSREMEI10EBTHERZI

Percentage
of the issued
share capital

Number of

FriSF LT FR{&ZF2F)

Name of shareholder Capacity ERITEER ERTERE
RS 215 ®H BRLE
Shum Siu Hung Beneficial owner 43,549,558 4.52%
P EmlAaA

Family interest (note 1) 490,779,280 50.94%

Rk (M 1)
Tong Shiu Ming Held by corporation (note 1) 490,779,280 50.94%
& /]NEA AR RIS (K1)

Family interest (note 2) 43,549,558 4.52%

Kk (Hst2)
Yam Tak Cheung Held by corporation (note 3) 80,000,000 8.30%

FEE AR R HB (K77 3)
Notes:

1. 490,779,280 shares of the Company are held by Uniocean
which is owned as to 15% by Shum Chun, Lawrence,
15% by Shum Ho, Neo, 64% by Tong Shiu Ming, 5%
by Wu Hong Cho and 1% by Cen Ziniu. The shares are
deemed as family interest because Tong Shiu Ming is the
spouse of Shum Siu Hung, and Shum Chun, Lawrence
and Shum Ho, Neo are sons of Shum Siu Hung.

2. 43,549,558 shares of the Company are deemed to be
interested by Tong Shiu Ming, spouse of Shum Siu Hung,
as family interest.

3. 80,000,000 shares of the Company are held by Integrated
Asset Management (Asia) Limited (“Integrated Asset”).
Yam Tak Cheung owned 100% of Integrated Asset
and was deemed to be the controlling shareholder of
Integrated Asset.

g

N A T 2490,779,280 % B% 15 @1 /8
BiEa BB E 2% F/
B MEERSEFHEDRIER15%
15% * 64% * 5% KX 1% ° A E/NFTY
RELEZRB mMBERBEE
DI T BMERERG WIS AR GE

Ny

©

o

Bl

NE 2 43,549,558 IR0 Th 48 A
B 7 BB E /N AR RS

ot B B

A& X A 280,000,000 & 3 H
Integrated Asset Management (Asia)
Limited ([ ARFE D#5E - EEEHAA
I 100% #2530 3 AR A A E 2 12
ARARER o
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Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

(b) Share options

Name of shareholder Capacity

BB 51

Shum Siu Hung Beneficial owner
ey ExnEAA

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not
been notified of any other relevant interests or short
position in the issued share capital of the Company as
at December 31, 2008.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their
merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

FERFEE)
(b) FERRE
Number of
Number of underlying
share options shares

FRSIRARIEME FiSHEMRNBE

9,940,358 9,940,358

B EXFIEZEREIN BARAMES
1 R2008F12A31H AR ABE
BT % 7K AR 7 4 A R] H A 4B A 4 2 0K

N

=

i I 3R

AEBETIZHMBRIIBFHNEZESRE
WEZER - B MBENBIET o
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B SRR M FE S0 ©
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Sufficiency of Public Float EHARBERE

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float KRB REZ2008F 12 A31 B IEBEAFZ
throughout the year ended December 31, 2008. NEHFEARTIFRE -

Auditor 4 10

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting ARBERERERRBFAS FIRE2EBE
to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of IB1=E) e FAEIR H @Rl ITARNARIZERT 2
the Company. REBER o

On behalf of the Board AEEGm

Shum Siu Hung E

Chairman HOH

Hong Kong, April 20, 2009 A# - 200994 A20H
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Deloitte.
=20

To the Members of NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 43 to 139, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet as at December 31, 2008, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of Bermuda Companies Act and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

BHBREARERRAFERE
(REFREZMA L HRAE])

FEEEERINENFI43E139BMBRERE
BARAR(TERA D RETFRBRENE
SHDZEEMBHRE - REMBERRERE
R2008F 12 AB1AZmAEERER A
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BPRLGEHERERER T E S HR
BN EAM TR

ESRGeMBBRCAE

BERAIZERARBHBA GRS RM
ZEBUMBHREENRFE ARG ZHE
REMmDI R BEEEBR T MZFRE MG
Hx o WEEBRER  BERELEFERH
REEMAFHIIHEE M HHRREENR
BBERIE - AELRA M B HMKR N7 E AR GE
SEERMEMMEANRRRAL - BERER
BEZEEE  MMEBEATHELAEZE
sHAET
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Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as
at December 31, 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

April 20, 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

ire Was

For the year ended December 31, 2008

HZE 20084 12 531 HiFF/ZE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Written off of trade debtors

Written off of other debtors

Changes in fair values of foreign currency
forward contracts

Adjustment to goodwill

Finance costs

Share of (loss) profit of a jointly controlled
entity

Profit before taxation
Taxation charge

Profit for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company

Earnings per share
Basic

Diluted

LN
HERAR

EH

LT ON

HERD X

IR

FEE S8R M

HLfth P Y B 5

MEERMANATEZSHE

HEAE

REKA

DE—RAREHER
(B8R &M

BR AT A1
BB

ARE 2SR A AR 2 FREH
isetll
=N

2008

-2 53

Notes HK$’000
WiiF FET

6 6,158,614
(5,931,218)

227,396

8 163,699
(99,087)

(85,562)

(17,167)

(1,115)

11,936

19 (135)
9 (145,483)
(360)

11 54,122
10 (1,211)

52,911

HK8.48 centsi&l

HK8.48 centsi&l

2007
“EEE
HK$'000
FEr

3,890,225
(3,719,247)

170,978
90,331
(68,107)
(63,419)

(22,883)
(442)
(64,469)

570

52,659
(2,105)

50,454

HK9.52 centsi#fl

HK9.49 centsi#fl
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
meEEEAEBR

At December 31, 2008

R2008%F 12531 H
2008 2007
—EENE ZETF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
fFF FETT FET
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - e N AR 16 572,037 501,112
Prepaid lease payments for T TR EFIA
land 17 54,341 53,391
Prepaid lease payments for AETENEERIE
coast 18 12,271 12,290
Goodwill FEES 19 123,436 102,623
Other intangible assets Hithfm & E 20 15,739 16,850
Interest in a jointly controlled —REEEHE R
entity 21 12,142 12,502
Other assets Hith &&= 22 31,401 35,759
Deferred tax assets EETRIEE E 31 1,556 1,930
822,923 736,457
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 23 137,666 126,925
Trade debtors and bills JEWE Z R R RN R &
receivable 24 447,671 430,863
Other debtors, deposits and HinEWRRTR ~ 1He NTE
prepayments R IE 24 412,053 160,530
Derivative financial instruments PTEMET A 40 550 —
Prepaid lease payments for T TR ERIA
land 17 2,348 2,211
Prepaid lease payments for AETENEERKIE
coast 18 778 732
Amount due from a jointly FEUR — [R5 B RS 2 7Kk
controlled entity 18 25 319 471
Pledged bank deposits BEEBIRITHER 26 732,199 755,375
Bank balances and cash RITEEBR MRS 26 143,756 105,968
1,877,340 1,683,075
Current liabilities REAE
Trade creditors and bills FENE SRR ENERE
payable 27 322,087 381,816
Other creditors and accrued HENRRNESTER
charges 215,789 96,814
Derivative financial instruments PTEEIA 40 - 21,402
Tax liabilities M aE 5,378 4,322
Borrowings, partly secured — B - HHBER — AR
repayable within one year —FAEE 28 1,309,045 1,064,999
Obligation for put option to BTHEB AR DERER
minority shareholder i BT
of a subsidiary 32 5,103 —
1,857,402 1,569,353
Net current assets REEEFE 19,938 13,722

Total assets less current liabilities @& ER TS EE 842,861 750,179




Consolidated Balance Sheet
meEBEERAEBR

At December 31, 2008

R2008%F 12531 H
2008 2007
—ZTN\E ZETLF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mt FET FET
Capital and reserves BEARR #1E
Share capital [N 29 96,336 48,168
Share premium and other B 130 (B & E b %
reserves 619,741 464,962
Equity attributable to equity RRmlZ #wmFE AEGE
holders of the Company = 716,077 513,130
Minority interests VAR R 1,531 10,713
Total equity BiEa 717,608 523,843
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Deferred tax liabilities RIENIE B & 31 15,002 16,109
Borrowings, partly secured — B BHBHER — R —
repayable over one year FgEE 28 110,251 205,421
Obligation for put option to BT E AL EIER
minority shareholder hiEZEE
of a subsidiary 32 - 4,806
125,253 226,336
842,861 750,179
The consolidated financial statements on pages 43 to 139 EE2R2009F 4 A 20 HEH R FREE
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of FASE1R0B 72 EHEzR - WAHTIE
Directors on April 20, 2009 and are signed on its behalf by: ERREHRE
Shum Siu Hung Shum Chun, Lawrence
EDU %8
Director Director

EZE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RAERETE

For the year ended December 31, 2008
B Z 2008 4F 12 A 31 HIFFE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FARCHAREARKES
Statutory Con-
surplus Share tributed
Share Share Special reserves  Exchange options surplus  Retained Minority
capital premium reserve EERB reserve reserve  accounts profits Total interests Total
ks RRER  BREE BE  ERRE RREGE BARZRE  GEEN e JERREE aHia
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS’OOO HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000
AT T AT AT AT T AT AT AT FAT AT
THE GROUP 350
At January 1, 2007 R200741A1R 48,168 199,299 122,085 1,13 17,434 5,855 1,667 50,329 445,950 1,531 447,481
Exchange differences RERTERER
arising from translation ZI B
to presentation currency  SEEELE
recognised directly in equity REEE = = - - 21,543 - - - 21,543 - 21,543
Profit for the year ERET = = = = - - - 50,454 50,454 - 50,454
Total recognised income for EWE%E@ZHQJ\
the year - - - - 21,543 - - 50,454 71,997 - 71,997
Appropriations “ - - - 3,933 - - - (3,933) - - -
Dividend paid ﬂxﬁ = - - - = = = (4,817) 4817) - (4,817)
Put option granted to acquire [& H HEARZD
equity interest from minority - kKRR
shareholders in a subsidiary B 7 218 = = - - - - - - - (4,80) (4,806)
Acquisttion of a subsidiary 1k — HEAF
(note 32) (Hiz#30) - - - - - - - - - 13,988 13,988
Reserve released upon the  BRIERME
lapse of share options i = - - - - (192) - 192 = - =
At December 31, 2007 H2007£12A318 48,168 199,299 122,085 5,046 38,977 5,663 1,667 92,225 513,130 10,713 523,843
Exchange differences RERTEERD
arising from translation iy
to presentation currency  ERBEE 2K
recognised directly in equity EZE - - - - 12,975 - - - 12,975 - 12,975
Profit for the year eyl - = = = = = = 52,911 52,911 - 52,911
Total recognised income for  £MBEAZRA
the year ] = = = = 12,975 = = 52,911 65,886 - 65,386
Appropriations ik = - - 1,244 - - - (1,244) - - -
Dividend paid BRkE - - - - - - - (5,298) (5,298) - (5,298)
Issue of new shares dueto ~ AAREER
open offer (note 29) ?*ﬂﬁﬂ
’Wa?y/ 48,168 96,335 - - - - - - 144,503 - 144,503
Transaction costs attributable ?’*{ REFT{EZ
o issue of new shares RGMA - (2,144) - - - - - - (2,144) - (2144)
Acquisition of additional Wi — HBAR
interest in a subsidiary BoER - - - - - - - - - (9,182) (9,182)
At December 31, 2008 R2008%12A31H 96,336 293,490 122,085 6,290 51,952 5,663 1,667 138,594 716,077 1,531 717,608
The special reserve of the Group represents the difference REEZ FRFEEREASB I ESAERA
between the share capital, share premium and capital TZHX$ EAGEREABLORHE B
redemption reserve of the Group’s former ultimate holding NE)RIE1999F 4 14 BRI 2 BHBEEL
company whose shares were exchanged for the Company’s PEETEIMRAZ AR EITARARH Z2EEBELZ
shares and the nominal amount of the share capital issued ER o
by the Company pursuant to a scheme of arrangement dated
April 14, 1999.
The statutory surplus reserves represent enterprise EEBARBERBBERBEZEEZRRE - B
development and general reserve funds appropriated from the REE AR KRB ([ E ) K2 8 A a Bk
profit after taxation of subsidiaries established in the People’s BEaffokeCEERE —RHFEHERES -
Republic of China (the “PRC”) in accordance with the PRC
laws and regulations.
\
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
= S
5038 6 REHE
For the year ended December 31, 2008
B2 20084 12 A 31 HIEF/ZF
2008 2007
—EENE TETHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES mEER
Profit before taxation FR 75 A A 54,122 52,5659
Adjustments for: FHE
Share of loss (profit) of a jointly 25— H[F3% 4 & 82 &5
controlled entity BO=F) 360 (570)
Finance costs B AN 145,483 64,469
Interest income FEHA (46,324) (10,287)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  HEKEB A TS - (7,371)
(Gain) loss on change in fair PTHEBIE T AN F(ERk
value of derivative financial 2 (P13 ) E5iE
instruments (11,936) 22,883
Adjustment to goodwill (SRR 135 442
Depreciation of property, plant M - MENRETE
and equipment 37,467 22,611
Written off of trade debtors FEUE 5 AR5 2 M 5H 17,167 —
Written off of other debtors LA 8 U BR SR 2 i 85 1,115 =
Loss on disposal and written- HE R - R R
off of property, plant and REZERE
equipment 95 =
Amortisation of prepaid lease T TR AR E R IR
payments for land 2,316 2,133
Amortisation of prepaid lease BE TR E SRR
payments for coast 767 707
Amortisation on other intangible — H {th iz & = 1 44
assets 2,347 2,163
Operating cash flows before BESFHRI o KERE
movements in working capital mEh 203,114 149,739
Increase in inventories e (10,741) (65,076)
Increase in trade debtors and bills & U 5 BR 7 K flE I E 542
receivable il (33,975) (291,141)
Increase in other debtors, deposits E b FEUEER - #£& RIENS
and prepayments FIFE AN (262,716) (30,864)
Decrease (increase) in amount due F& Uk — 2t [F112 %I & 2 ZIER
from a jointly controlled entity A (1) 152 (201)
(Decrease) increase in trade FE B 5 IR K S 1% ORt
creditors and bills payable ) 1N (59,729) 95,693
Increase in other creditors and HAth eI sIA R BT & AL
accrued charges il 118,975 9,472
Cash used in operations KE TR S5 (44,920) (132,378)
PRC income tax paid SR BATER (2,124) (394)
Interest paid SAHFLE (145,483) (64,469)
NET CASH USED IN REXBHMARSFEE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES (192,527) (197,241)
S
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For the year ended December 31, 2008

B Z2008F 12 31 HiEFZE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Acquisition of subsidiaries (net
of cash and cash equivalents
acquired)

Deposit paid for acquisition
of additional interests in a
subsidiary

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Deposit paid for acquisition of a
subsidiary

Payments of prepaid lease rental
for a vessel

Decrease (increase) in pledged
bank deposits

Proceeds from disposals of
property, plant and equipment

Compensation from the gas plant
contractor

NET CASH USED IN
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid

Borrowings raised

Repayment of borrowings
Proceeds from issue of shares
Expenses on issue of shares
Dividend paid

NET CASH GENERATED FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE)
IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

EFFECT OF FOREIGN
EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES
OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and cash

Bank overdrafts

Note
it
RETE
B UH B
BB 2 e (EMRTEZ 32
HeMERIEEER)
SATUEE I B A R BRI ME
k2

BEWME  HENEE
SNWBEHB AR 2
XNHEMERN IR
EHEMRITEZRD GEI)
HEWR - 28 MRIBATE
R 2 B E

REFBAREFE

REED
EfFiS
Fo
13817 P18
BITRA
B R e

METDELRSFHE

ReRhERBSEBEM
(RD) F 5

SERBRSH o HE

FNRERERARELEE

FRESRERRESEEB

ReRhERBEHEBIN

RITERR NI S
iR TT%EZ

2008
—ETNF
HK$’000
FET

(81,568)
(16,313)

(28,298)

(6,184)
5,343,564

(5,223,801)
144,503
(2,144)
(5,298)

250,640

105,968

141,950

143,756
(1,806)

141,950

2007
—ETEF
HK$'000
FET

10,287

(15,685)

(22,452)
(132,557)
(14,517)
(441,718)
174
146,183

(470,285)

(9,035)
2,781,866
(2,155,408)

(4,81_7)

612,606

(54,920)

9,854

151,034

105,968

105,968

105,968




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended December 31, 2008
EtZE 2008 12 531 HIFF/E

1.

General

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) . Its ultimate and immediate
holding company is Uniocean Investments Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
The address of the registered office of the Company is
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the
annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of the Group are the sale and
distribution of liquefied petroleum gas and sale of
electronic products.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“RMB”), the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Group operates. For the
purpose of the consolidated financial statements and
convenience of the financial statements users, the
results and financial position of the Group are expressed
in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), the presentation currency
for the consolidated financial statements.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments and interpretations (“new HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are or have become
effective.

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reclassification of financial
(Amendments) assets

HK(IFRIC)-INT 11 HKFRS 2: Group and treasury

share transactions

Service concession
arrangements

HK(IFRIC)=INT 12

HK(IFRIC)-INT 14 HKAS 19 — The limit
on a defined benefit
asset, minimum funding
requirements and their

interaction

{8t alt
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EBRHEMDHACAHRNRHEESE
TEm -

ARBZNEEEBARE - BAKE
REMETBREHWR 2ER - RITE
HEMBRRERE  AREZEER
IR IAE T (AR B MR KR R 5 2
EB)RR -

BRI REETERMBERESE
R
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results or financial position for the current
or prior accounting periods have been prepared and
presented. Accordingly, no prior year adjustment has
been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective.

1

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of financial
statements®

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing costs®

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and separate
financial statements®

Puttable financial instruments
and obligations arising on
liquidation?

Eligible hedged items®

HKAS 32 & 1
(Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

Cost of an investment in a
subsidiary, jointly controlled
entity or associate®

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting conditions and
cancellations®

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combinations®

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving disclosures about
financial instruments®

HKFRS 8 Operating segments®

HK(IFRIC)-INT 9 & Embedded derivatives*

HKAS 39 (Amendments)
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-INT 13 Customer loyalty programmes®

HK(IFRIC)-INT 15 Agreements for the
construction of real estate?

HK(IFRIC)-INT 16 Hedges of a net investment in
a foreign operation®

HK(IFRIC)-INT 17 Distributions of non-cash
assets to owners®

HK(IFRIC)-INT 18 Transfers of assets from
customers’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2009 except the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective
for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1,
2009

Effective for annual periods ending on or after June 30,
2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1,
2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after October
1, 2008

Effective for transfers on or after July 1, 2009

ERHITRESTERMBERE
R (&)

575 (BEBRMBHE BEEFTE®
ZEZEE)

— 135

&5 (BRI EHE BhERERE®
ZEZEg)

— $ 155

HEE (BB RE BINEBHREF
ZEZEE BT °

— F 165

ER (BB RE DRIERSEE
ZEZEg FHAAN®

— 175

575 (BEBRMBEHRE NEFPEEEE’
ZEZEE

— 185k

! MR2009F1 A1 2 BHABZFE
HE AR - BEMISHREERFESHRZ
BT ARK SN  R2009F7 A1 B2
BB FEHMEMR -

: M2009F1 A1 B K 2B Rb 2 FE
AR AERR o

¢ R2009FE7 A1B 2 EHBZEE
BARE AR SR o

¢ MR 20094%6 A0 B K 2B ERZEE
HARTAE K o

° R2008FE7 A1B 2 EHBZEE
HARE AR o

o M 20084F 10 B1 B 2 4Rt 2 E/E
AR AERR o

! R2009FE7 1B 2 BT EZE
R o




52 | NewOcean Energy Holidings Limited #1&s2REE AR AT

A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= A

Iy /\ﬁ%%iﬁﬁ IZ{\—J%\E

For the year ended December 31, 2008

B2 20084 12 A 31 HIEF/ZF
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the
Group’s accounting for business combination for which
the acquisition date is on or after January 1, 2010.
HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment
for changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary. The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of the other new and revised standards,
amendments or interpretations will have no material
impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
derivative financial instruments, which are measured at
fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist
of the amount of those interests at the date of the
original business combination and the minority’s share
of changes in equity since the date of the combination.
Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the
minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated
against the interests of the Group except to the extent
that the minority has a binding obligation and is able to
make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to
the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the
conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations are recognised at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an
asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the cost of the business combination over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after
reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business
combination, the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree
is initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the
net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised.

Acquisition of additional interests in a subsidiary

The cost of the acquisition is measured at the
consideration paid for the additional interest. The
goodwill is calculated as the difference between the
consideration paid and the carrying amount of the net
assets of the subsidiary attributable to the additional
interest acquired.

Goodwill

Gooawill arising on acquisitions prior to January 1, 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition of net assets and
operations of another entity or a jointly controlled entity
for which the agreement date is before January 1, 2005
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the relevant acquiree at the date
of acquisition.

Gooadwill arising on acquisitions on or after January 1,
2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business for
which the agreement date is on or after January 1, 2005
represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant
business at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a
business is presented separately in the consolidated
balance sheet.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after January 1,
2005 (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition of a subsidiary is allocated to each
of the relevant cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on
an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other
assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss
for goodwill is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating
unit, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal.

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the
establishment of a separate entity in which venturers
have joint control over the economic activity of the entity
are referred to as jointly controlled entities.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in jointly
controlled entities are carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
of changes in equity of the jointly controlled entities,
less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s
share of losses of a jointly controlled entity equals or
exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity, the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and
a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities of the jointly controlled entity recognised at
the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. This
goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the
investment and is assessed for impairment as part of the
investment.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled
entity of the Group, unrealised profits or losses are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the jointly controlled entity, except to the extent that
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred, in which case, the full amount of
losses is recognised.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received and receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal course
of business, less discounts, sales related taxes, returns
and allowances.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
timely basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial assets to that
asset’s net carrying amount.

Subcontracting fee income under subcontracting
arrangement is recognised on a straight line basis over
the respective subcontracting lease terms.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purpose other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation and amortisation are provided to write off
the cost, other than construction in progress, over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of
their estimated residual value, using the straight-line
method.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress
is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property
assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item)
is included in the consolidated income statement in the
year in which the item is derecognised.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill where
they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset and their
fair values can be measured reliably. The cost of such
intangible assets is their fair value at the acquisition
date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
below).

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,
first-out method.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet
date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s operations recorded at the functional currency
are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised as
a separate component of equity (the exchange reserve).
Such exchange differences are recognised in profit
or loss in the year in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation on or after January 1, 2005 are treated as
assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on
a straight-line basis.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated income statement because it excludes
items of income or expenses that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items of
income or expenses that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and interests in joint ventures, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the year when the liability is settled
or the asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited
to profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged
or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also dealt with in equity.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Retirement benefit cost

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans
and receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of financial
assets are set out below.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
including bank balances, pledged bank deposits, trade
debtors, bills receivable, other debtors and deposits are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial assets
are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as
a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been
impacted.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables and bills receivables, assets that
are assessed not to be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade debtors and other debtors, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade creditors, bills payable,
other creditors and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each
balance sheet date. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of
a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees on or before
November 7, 2002 or granted after November 7, 2002
and vested before January 1, 2002

The financial impact of share options granted is not
recorded in the consolidated financial statements until
such time as the options are exercised, and no charge
is recognised in the consolidated income statement
in respect of the value of options granted. Upon the
exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued
are recorded as additional share capital at the nominal
value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise
price per share over the nominal value of the shares is
recorded as share premium. Options which lapse or are
cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from
the register of outstanding options.

FEERREE)

MBIR(E)

L3 14
BERWEERSRE EMNER -
BEERBEEMASECEREZAM

BEERAR BRI ER KD HK
B BREESHIRER - R HIRER

MGEER  ZBEEEREBEREWR
ERREEHERACEEERNEBERRE
g

EEMANMATRAETERR ik
ERE - MEREEEAKREEERE
=Gk - BIGRER M B RENKRE
EHEENKENREREZERN B RE

7
e

LI HERZIH

L@ fiRiFBEREXH

R2002F 11 A7 He .2 IR T 1€ §E A9
FERRIE S R2002FE 11 A7 E#ET
ME20024F 1 A1 HEIELE °

BETRERENM BT EL LB LEER
BV HHmER EEERBERITE - £
B BImE LALA RBRATE T ERE
BEZXH - EITERER - FAETH
AL AE T WA - BEEE
8 SRWNTEERAEENEE &L
SR AR (B o B HI A TTE A R BUH
MRBRE - A S R MR o




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4= A

N /\j%%iﬁﬁ M\‘J EE

For the year ended December 31, 2008
EtZE 2008 12 531 HIFF/E

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to employees after November 7,
2002 and vested after January 1, 2005

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share options reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected
to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustments to
share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the management has
made various estimates factors about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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4,

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are also
discussed below.

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets

Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets
relating to sale and distribution of liquefied petroleum
gas (“LPG”) arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries
are impaired require an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which goodwill and
intangible assets have been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. The discount rate represents rate
that reflects current market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at
December 31, 2008, the carrying amounts of goodwill
and intangible assets are approximately HK$123,436,000
and HK$15,739,000 respectively (2007: HK$102,623,000
and HK$16,850,000). Details of the goodwill and
intangible assets are disclosed in notes 19 and 20
respectively.
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4,

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
(Continued)

Income taxes

As at December 31, 2008, a deferred tax asset of
approximately HK$1,556,000 (2007: HK$1,930,000) in
relation to unused tax losses has been recognised in
the Group’s consolidated balance sheet. The realisability
of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the
actual future profits generated are less than expected,
a material reversal of deferred tax assets may arise,
which would be recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the year in which such a reversal takes
place. Details of unused tax losses not recognised
amounted to approximately HK$91,881,000 (2007:
HK$57,259,000) are disclosed in note 31. The unused
tax losses not recognised may be capitalised if the
actual future profits generated are more than expected.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt,
which includes the borrowings as disclosed in note 28,
and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising issued capital and retained profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure on a continuous basis taking into account the
cost of capital and the risk associated with the capital.
The Group will balance its overall capital structure
through new share issues, payment of dividends and
the raise of bank borrowings or the repayment of the
existing bank borrowings.
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Capital Risk Management and Financial 5. B¥XRREREERRMBIAE)
Instruments (Continued)
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged during FERAREEEERBRIFTIE -
the year.
Categories of financial instruments MBIRZER
2008 2007
—EINE —ETLEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FETT
Financial assets IEEE
Derivative financial instruments DTS T A 550 =
Loans and receivables (including BRARERZE(RERE &
cash and cash equivalents) ZRBELIER) 1,372,432 1,454,815
Financial liabilities M%aE
Amortised cost P AN 2 55 1,832,958 1,698,508
Derivative financial instruments DTS T A - 21,402

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank
balances, pledged bank deposits, borrowings, trade
debtors, bills receivable, other debtors, deposits, trade
creditors and bills payable and other creditors. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

MERBREERERBE

AREEZETBMBTEABRRITER
EEMRITER X BRESK
R BKRERE - EMERER - E2E
FENE SRR M BN R M E M MR
R REMBTAFBENEMERE -
TXEIEAZEH BT AR ZER K
AR IEZFRR ZBR - EEEEE
REEZEZERMB - AR R EFA A B
REGEE 2fEt
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial 5. BEXEBEEERMEIAE)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HERBEEEERBEZ)
(Continued)
Market risk Em e
(i) Currency risk 0 EEELE

RNRATETHEB AR B AINEHE
ZEE  SAEBEEZINERR o
ETRWE SRR « BITEHRRIR
¢ BEEBERTER EHES
R R ENZH RER - AINE
EE(GEBEDRINKIE24 ~ 26

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. Certain trade
debtors, bank balances and cash, pledged bank
deposits, trade creditors and bills payable and
borrowings of the Group are denominated in foreign

currencies as disclosed in notes 24, 26, 27 and 28
respectively. Approximately 11% (2007: 26%) of the
Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the group entities
making the sale, whilst almost 21% (2007: 67%) of
costs are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the group entity’s functional
currency.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and

monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as
follows:

United States Dollars (“USD”)

European Dollars (“EUR”)

2T R2BFER) c AEE ZHER
#311% (2007: 26%) AAREEE

Bz

ok 1
Be B

WEME  MIFEUAR

EEETERIEEEHEE  921%
(2007: 67%) FRAUARNEE TR

s

W -

AEBINEIIECEREERE
BRENRE A REERNT

Assets Liabilities
BE &7
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —TT+HF ZBINE —TTtH
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

165,213 140,335

ICER KRN 1,395,263
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial 5. B¥XRREREERRMBIAE)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies MEREEHEEERBEK (&)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mEmEE (E)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) ) EXEEEE)
During the financial years, the management has RABMBFEE EEEDE]
entered into several foreign currency forward HMHINERPE OURIEE K
contracts to reduce the exposure of currency B b 2 &% 2 - ;220084 12 H 31
risk. As at December 31, 2008, the Group has B @ KN& B A 455,084,000 3%
outstanding foreign currency forward contracts with J0(2007 : 88,957,000 7t ) & 49
an aggregate notional amount of approximately 6,288,000 BT (2007 : ) 2%
USD55,084,000 (2007: USD88,957,000) and BeBRARE  ZEEREH
approximately EUR6,288,000 (2007: nil) in relation ARME 7 INESRERGH) o HNE R ER
to RMB. The details of the foreign currency forward BRI ZFIBE R 40K -

contracts are disclosed in note 40.
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5.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged with
USD, the currency risk is mainly arising from
exchange USD and EUR against RMB. The
following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
a 5% increase and decrease in USD and EUR
against RMB and 5% increase and decrease
RMB/USD or RMB/EUR forward exchange rate.
5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates and RMB/EUR and
RMB/USD forward exchange rate. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and foreign currency
forward contracts and adjusts their translation at
the year end for a 5% change in foreign currency
rates or their fair value at the year end for a 5%
change in forward exchange rate. A positive
number below indicates an increase in post-tax
profit where RMB strengthen 5% against USD and
EUR. For a 5% weakening of RMB against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit and the balances
below would be negative.

BERREERMBIA D)

MERBRERZARRBE(E)

mEmEE (E)
() EEERE)
BURE DM

RRET AMERESTHE - |
KRR EEXREEXTABRARE -
TRFHIAREBER T RBITH &
AR EFTEHES% RARYE,/
ETHARE BTEBER
T T ER5% N BRRE - MEBE
BABAREREERARE - 7
5% RERRE  RREEEYHE
KRANRE/EXTRARE B
TUEHIE R BRI - B
B o BEAINETIEN REE
TRIEE RIMNEERISH - AN
FREEFEH % EREEHHER
FRZ R FENEE% 1= HFE & & &)
HE - MARBLBMITRET
EFH5% - RIART IE 8RR R 5 A1
me MAREALEREE TK
5% M@ HEFELBSFRER
Mg BUTHESREREE -
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial 5. BEXEBEEERMEIAE)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HBERGEEHERBE(Z)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) miEmEE (E)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () EEER(E)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRE DT (&)
EUR impact USD impact
BRTaE ETHE
2008 2007 2008 2007

—EBN\FE —TTLH ZPBNF _—TTLH
HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$’000  HK$'000
FET THET FEAT FHET

Increase (decrease) in profit for  EREFIEM(FHL)

the year (Note) (f7:2)
— monetary assets and — SREER

liabilities aff 3,357 66,987
— foreign currency forward — SNEIRER

contracts 54 (2,832) (17,582)

Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure Hig: EXFEERERKEENIRE
outstanding on bank balances, receivables, TTRETTEBRIRITESS - 1B
payables and borrowings denominated in USD and WREFK ~ B BR R K 8 B A5 2K
EUR and foreign currency forward contracts as at By @ f o
year end.

(i) Interest rate risk (i) FIEERE

The Group’s bank loans have exposure to cash FERITAERR 2 IS KRB - KE

flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the BB SR ZIRITERTEE

prevailing market interest rate on bank loans which EREF KRR -

carried at prevailing market interest rates.




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
#re B

1755 R I P

For the year ended December 31, 2008
EtZE 2008 12 531 HIFF/E

5. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

In addition, the Group has exposure to fair value
interest rate risk through the impact of the rate
changes on pledged bank deposits which are
carried at fixed interest rate. The directors consider
the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk is not
significant as interest bearing bank balances are
within short maturity periods.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to fixed-rate borrowings (see note 28 for
details of these borrowings). The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the Group’s
borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank borrowings, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
outstanding balances at the balance sheet date
was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis
point increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

BERREERMBIA D)

MERBRERZARRBE(E)

mEmEE (E)

(i)

FIE @R

AN - AREE 2 B EIRIRTTIF R
BEEME - MEHBTETRA
FEMNEER EZRAANEEH
BZMERRBRILIFEX - EKHAF
BZRITHEHBMADBER -

AEEZ ATENEARES SR
Bl RS B (R B A
Bt 5 28) - 74 o B BB o4 2 o
HEE - AT EEEERAEE
B 8 R A B R E AR
2 -

AEEZHBRENRRERFEH
RAWTERBE AR ETE—F1 -
AEBEZRERAXRREESET
RAKE B2 FBRITRER
BZIKE

BUREDH

TXBRE DT TDAERZEFE R
HEEMBEE @ BFERITERM
5 oM NRERNEE R REED
EHRTEARNBEFEARKREEREM
fEH - MEEEIEA B RELE RN
T b By - 7 50 M £ BB A0 18
B RREEEHFENEEES
fEHRORHE ©
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5.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(ii)  Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s profit for the year ended December 31,
2008 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$2,427,000 (2007: HK$1,749,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s approximately
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate bank
borrowings.

Credit risk

As at December 31, 2008, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
trade debtors and bills receivable of approximately
HK$447,671,000 (2007: HK$430,863,000). The Group
has significant concentration risk on certain customers.
As at December 31, 2008, six (2007: five) customers
amounted approximately HK$400,768,000 (2007:
HK$324,866,000) comprised over 90% (2007: 75%)
of the Group’s trade debtors. In order to minimise the
credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debtors, other debtors
and deposits at each balance sheet date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ranking
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

BERREERMBIA D)

MERBREEZARRBE(E)

HEmEE(E)
(i) FIEERE(E)
BRE DT (&)

fEF =12 RS0 AL B S B T A
Hb A SRR MEFTE - NEBEE
Z2008F 12 A31 8 IF FE & A
18 0, A 49 2,427,000 % 7T
(2007 £F : 1,749,000 7T ) * &
FERRAEERZBFRIRITE
AR IRITHEBAZ R R AR

57 mEE

MR2008F12 A31H - E¥ 57 T~ E 1T
EAmMSEBREREYBEIANESE
ERBRREEZIERLEREE 4
447,671,000 7T (2007 : 430,863,000
BIL) c SEBEEMNRARSERE L
B F £ - R2008 F12 A31H ' 64z

(2007 : 541 ) % F 1B 49 400,768,000
7 70 (2007 : 324,866,000/ L) * (h&
lfﬁ%ﬁﬁaﬁiﬂgo%@om 1 75%) ©
AERSEERRE  SEKY T —BKA
wsaam:ffgﬁ 1:??%%&%@?%

T2 Fr 2R VB FE HATE = 1T 8 SR BB B AR

Ko BE SEEGELER 295
MEMANOE Z R Ei\ﬁﬂﬁﬁm)iﬂ_ﬁﬁl

IR AT R EIES - PAREIRBESH T BE

WiE B R IR R B SR B B IR A

EEERL ARAEERAREENEER
& XiERd -

B EEFRREEEESEETRT
R1T > MEBEZRDES ZEERRE
BR -
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

As at December 31, 2008, the Group has undrawn short
term borrowing facilities with floating rate amounting to
approximately HK$657,467,000 (2007: HK$899,087,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its derivative and non-derivative
financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. The total undiscounted cash flows
adjustment column represents the possible future cash
flows attributable to the instrument included in the
maturity analysis which are not included in the carrying
amount of the financial liabilities on each balance sheet
date.

BERREERMBIA D)

MERBRERZARRBE(E)

BB LR

EEBERDECRRE  AEEEIER
EEERARFEANET RERRE
BEEE  UAAKENEHEERM
E2WRERERERPOTE - B
BEEZIRTTIEE M E AN KRBT
ERRL) »

R2008F12 531 H » 7 £ B K 42 B %5
EFHAR2EHPEREELN S
657,467,000 7T (2007 £ : 899,087,000
BIT) °

TRAMSINAREOTERIEOTER 75
BENKRTEHONIEMA - TRIDER
AEERBEMBHRENRE BHNR
FRATREMBR - TRERBMEK
AEWRERE - ZRBENERAEAE
MAERE - RENMRWBRSRER
B RRX-LITAHIHNHERE
FEANTE  MELTANEEES
BRRLERBEHRER LR -
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial 5. B¥XRREREERRMBIAE)

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies HBERGEEHERBE(Z)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REELEE(E)
Liquidity and interest risk table BB L RFIEEfRx
Weighted Carrying
average amount at
effective balance
interest sheet date
rate Within Over 2 years to R

miEFy 1 year 1year  5years Total ®HAZ
ERFE 1R 1FEBLE  25F5F x| BEE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

FET FET FET FET FET

As at December 31, 2008 R 200812 A31 8
Trade creditors and ENESETR
bills payable EREE — 322,087 = — 322087 322,087
Other creditors HAt R = 91,575 - - 91,575 91,575
Fixed interest rates borrowings B {E 6.15% 850,894 - — 850,894 838,081
Variable interest rate ZEFEEH
borrowings 6.36% 479,161 57,558 136,207 672,926 581,215

1,743,717 57,558 136,207 1,937,482 1,832,958

Derivatives — gross settlement — fTHE#E @5

Foreign currency forward INEREAH
contracts
— inflow —RA (497,747) - - (497,747) (497,747)
— outflow — 497,197 - — 497197 497197

(550) - - (550) (550)
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial 5. BEXEBEEERMEIAE)

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies HBERGEEHERBE(Z)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REELEE(E)
Liquidity and interest risk table (Continued) RENE 2 R FIEE X ()
Weighted Carrying
average amount at
effective balance
interest sheet date
rate Within Over 2 years to R

miEFy 1 year 1year  5years Total #HHAZ
ERFE 1R 1FEBLE  2FF5F &5 BEE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

FET FET FET FET FET

As at December 31, 2007 #2007 %12 318
Trade creditors and ENESETRERE
bills payable & — 381816 = — 381,816 381816
Other creditors H SRR - 46,272 - — 46,272 46,272
Fixed interest rates borrowings B {E 576% 883,646 - — 883646 846,525
Variable interest rate borrowings  ZENFI|E &R 6.72% 233,328 11,413 130,277 475,018 423,895

1,545,062 111,413 130,277 1,786,752 1,698,508

Derivatives — gross settlement #7445 &%

Foreign currency INEEEEH
forward contracts
— inflow — A (1,018,841) — —  (1,018,841) (1,018,841)
— outflow — i 1,040,243 - — 1,040,243 1,040,243

21,402 =

21,402 21,402
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5.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis
or using prices from observable current market
transactions.

The fair values of foreign currency forward contracts are
measured using forward exchange rates quoted from
financial institutions matching maturities of the contracts.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

Revenue

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received
and receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside
customers, less discount, related taxes and returns and
allowances for the year, and is analysed as follows:

Sale and distribution of HERDHERIER
LPG
Sale of electronic products HEETEM

BERREERMBIA D)

LFE

MBEERRBBEZAFEIURR —RK
ZMARERBESINM 2 EEBER > K
SEARNMERHEE

SNERBIB N2 A FETISI BT B EE
HEGHEPRAZENERRENE -

FERRNGA M BRE LR 2B
AEREBEERERAZIEEE L
HAFE -

WA

WA EFAREBAINREFPHE
mBE R ERER BRI
MIERBRE KRR 2 AFE - HAH
T~

p=
=
A

%
1

2008 2007
e =
HK$’000 HK$°000
F#iT FET

5,702,341 3,673,610
456,273 216,615
6,158,614 3,890,225
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7. Business and Geographical Segments 7. REBERBESBEHE

AEETFERERIERNVHEEEDH N
EFEMIHE AEEERE DR
BRI AZEXTRERER -

The Group is principally engaged in sale and distribution
of LPG and sale of electronic products. These
businesses are the basis on which the Group reports its
primary segment information.

Segment information about these businesses is ZEEBZOEERZZMAT
presented below:

KBS

Business segments
Income statement V¢~

For the year ended December 31, 2008: HZE2008F 12 A31 HILFSE :

Sale and Sale of

distribution electronic

of LPG products
HERDH $4€ Consolidated
Ritwm EFES =&
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FETT FETT

Segment revenue Dk 5,702,341 456,273 6,158,614

Segment result

Interest income

Unallocated corporate expenses

Change in fair values of foreign
currency forward contracts

Finance costs

Share of loss of a jointly controlled
entity

Profit before taxation
Taxation charge

Profit for the year

GEE S

FMEBA

AOBREERX

SN RERA A
DFERE

BEKA

A —F AR

BRI A
B

FNRT

118,858

37,900 156,758

- 46,324
- (15,053)

11,936
(145,483)

(360)

54,122
(1,211)

52,911
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7. Business and Geographical Segments (Continued) 7.

Business segments (Continued)

Balance sheet

At December 31, 2008:

Assets
Segment assets

Interest in a jointly controlled entity

Unallocated corporate assets
Consolidated total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

Other information

For the year ended December

Capital expenditure and goodwill
Adjustment to goodwill
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Amortisation of other
intangible assets
Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments for land
Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments for coast
Loss on disposal and written off
of property, plant and equipment

KERMESFEH(Z)
RmaomE)
HEAMF®

MN20084 12 A31 H

Sale and Sale of

distribution electronic

of LPG products
HERSH $€ Consolidated
y. 3|44 EFER =8
HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET

B
DEEE
—HXHAEGIEE s
ROBEEFEE
REBEE
=4
DEEE
ROEEEFEE
ReEBAas
31, 2008:
Sale and
distribution
of LPG
HER
PHMBIR
HK$°000
FRET
BALHREE 101,268
HERE 135
mE - BEREE
e 36,972
HiBHEERH
2,347
T B AR E AR
2,316
BRI ET IR H
767
& RHsEY 5 -
MR EEE 95

1,644,159

507,456

148,898
12,142 -

1,793,057
12,142
895,064
2,700,263
521,403
1,461,252

1,982,655

HEMEH
HZE2008F 12 A31 HIEFE :

Sale of

electronic
products Unallocated Consolidated
HESTER ROE e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET

101,493
135

37,467

2,347

2,316

767

95
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7. Business and Geographical Segments (Continued)

Business segments (Continued)

Income statement

For the year ended December 31, 2007:

Segment revenue

Segment result

Interest income

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Unallocated corporate expenses

Change in fair values of foreign
currency forward contracts

Finance costs

Share of profit of a jointly controlled
entity

Profit before taxation

Taxation charge

Profit for the year

K

LG

GECES
FEWA
HEKBRRME
ADEREEMX

SMEEERA AT ERE

AME—FKAREH EE

BR B4 A4 A
BB

FRET

et

-l

EERMESFRER A
REOM(E)
L ¢-£5

HE2007F12 A31 BIEFE :

Sale and Sale of
distribution electronic
of LPG products
HEN D $4%  Consolidated
BIER BTEmM R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FEr FET
3,673,610 216,615 3,890,225
123,660 20,432 144,092
— — 10,287
7,371 — 7,371
— — (22,409)
— — (22,883)
— — (64,469)
570 — 570
52,559
(2,105)
50,454
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7. Business and Geographical Segments (Continued) 7. REBERBESEEHEZ)
Business segments (Continued) ¥xomE)
Balance sheet HEEAEF
At December 31, 2007: M2007 12 H31H:
Sale and
distribution Sale of
of LPG electronic
HER products  Consolidated
PERER  HEETESR N
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 1,339,168 101,804 1,440,972
Interest in a jointly controlled entity ~ —ZRILFEIEHIEE 7 12,502 — 12,502
Unallocated corporate assets KOBRGCEEE 866,058
Consolidated total assets REREE 2,319,532
Liabilities =R
Segment liabilities DEAE 467,718 5,125 472,843
Unallocated corporate liabilities KoREEEE 1,322,846
Consolidated total liabilities mERaRE 1,795,689
Other information HEMEFE
For the year ended December 31, 2007: HE2007E12 A31 BILEE -
Sale and
distribution Sale of
of LPG electronic
HER products  Unallocated  Consolidated
SRR HESTEMR AAR ey
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Capital expenditure and goodwill BERYT HRWENBARE
arising from acquisitions of K2R
subsidiaries 241,809 91 24 241,924
Adjustment to goodwill EEAE 442 - - 442
Depreciation of property, ME - WBEREEL
plant and equipment nE 22,113 — 498 22,611
Amortisation of other HiBHEESRE
intangible assets 2,163 = = 2,163
Amortisation of prepaid lease BB E AR S
payments for land 2,133 — — 2,133
Amortisation of prepaid lease BFRAEEEH
payments for coast 707 — — 707
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7. Business and Geographical Segments (Continued)
Geographical segments

The Group’s operations, by the geographical location of
its customers, are located in Hong Kong and the PRC,
South East Asia, Thailand, Vietnam and Korea. The
Group’s sale and distribution of LPG was carried out in
the PRC. The Group’s sale of electronic products was
carried out in Hong Kong.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue by geographical market, irrespective of the
origin of the goods:

The PRC ==l
Thailand =EH
Vietnam jigea)
Hong Kong BB
Korea B2
South East Asia R

EBERMESFREHR D)
HES W

AEBZREXBREP AN RS
DouUREE - PE - REE - HFE
BERER - AEEHE D HRER
ZEBRPABET -  AEREHEETE
in < RGN EBHELT

TRAHIRAE B IR T 5 A R U
s Ao EYRIRM

Sales revenue by
geographical markets

BHEHMEZSHERA
2008 2007
—ETN\E —ETEF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRET FET

3,405,935 2,265,145
1,134,286 841,066
801,158 =
570,808 132,437
14,796 337,247
231,631 314,330

6,158,614 3,890,225
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7. Business and Geographical Segments (Continued) 7. REBERBESEEHEZ)
Geographical segments (Continued) WESEE)
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount REEMTEHEE S D EEERAE
of segment assets, and additions to property, plant ARYIZE M REE  BEREME
and equipment, goodwill and other intangible assets, FKEERBEZDWAT :
analysed by the geographical area in which the assets
are located:
Additions to property,
plant and equipment,
goodwill and other
Carrying amount intangible assets
of segment assets NE BEREMG HER
SEEECREE EtEMEEZRE
2008 2007 2008 2007
-2 3 S s k-1 ]2 e
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
F#TT FET F#T FET
The PRC Y 904,101 932,690 101,268 241,780
Hong Kong BB 122,119 141,076 115
Thailand el 311,108 273,640 -
South East Asia REE 455,729 93,566 29
1,793,057 1,440,972 101,493 241,924
8. Other income 8. HftilgA
2008 2007
—ETNE ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHEIT TFHETT
Interest earned on bank deposits RITIE AR 46,324 10,287
Net exchange gain b 5 Wz SRR 113,633 63,283
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LEMB ARG - 7,371
Subcontracting fee income B ERKRA - 6,471
Others Hih 3,742 2,919
163,699 90,331
\
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9. Finance Costs 9. WMBERF
2008 2007
—EENE TETAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Interests on bank and other borrowings ZERAFRNEHEBHFITH

wholly repayable within five years Hitnfe EHF S 41,461 41,239
Interests on bank trust receipts loans BERFEITERAORITET

pledged with bank deposits Wt 3R 2 F & 72,760 21,489
Bank charges related to bank trust BEMRITERARITEFT

receipts loans pledged with bank W & /A

deposits 19,198 9,344
Other bank charges HiR1TE A 18,248 1,432
Less: Amounts capitalised & BAMEE& R (6,184) (9,035)

145,483 64,469

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose from BENSEERERZHEME AN —IE
a bank loan borrowed for the construction of gas plant BITEE  HEEKANEERNEARL -

and facilities in Zhuhai.

10. Taxation charge 10. MIEZH
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated R AR RANG 2 FHIEAE

income statement represents:

2008 2007
ZET)\EFE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ir FHEIT
Current tax: BNEARRIE :

Other regions in the PRC R B At 3 [ (3,180) (2,631)

Deferred tax (note 31) EERIB (Ha£31)
Current year AREFEE 1,783 374
Attributable to a change in tax rate FRRA R R B B A 186 152

1,969 526

(1,211) (2,105)




90 | NewOcean Energy Holidings Limited #1&s2REE AR AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BRI

For the year ended December 31, 2008

HZE 20084 12 531 HiFF/ZE
10. Taxation Charge (Continued) 10. MREXZHZ)

On June 26, 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed the Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate
profits tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the
year of assessment 2008/2009. Therefore, Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) of the
estimated assessable profit for the year.

The current tax for other regions in the PRC represents
PRC enterprise income tax, which is calculated at the
rates prevailing, in respect of the Company’s subsidiaries
operating in the PRC.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC, ¥EglR (3R8) BRAR (‘308 (B8) ) is entitled
to exemption from the PRC enterprise income tax for
the two years starting from its first profit-making year,
followed by a 50% tax relief for the next three years. The
tax charge provided has been made after taking these tax
incentive into account. The first profit making year of #1/&
(%/8) is 2006.

On March 16, 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of
the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law”)
by Order No. 63 of the President of the PRC. On
December 6, 2007, the State Council of the PRC issued
Implementation Regulations of the New Law. Under
the New Law and Implementation Regulations, the
Enterprise Income Tax rate of the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC, was reduced from 33% to 25% from
January 1, 2008 onwards. The relevant tax rates for
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC range from 18%
to 25% (2007: 15% to 33%). The deferred tax balance
has been adjusted to reflect the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the respective periods when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled. ¥1/8 (B/&) is
entitled to the 50% tax relief on the PRC enterprise tax
at a tax rate increasing progressively for the next three
years from 18% to 22% from 2008 to 2010. From 2011
onwards it will be subject to 25% PRC enterprise tax.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
in the consolidated financial statements as the Company
and its subsidiaries had no assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong.

MR2008F6 A26H @ BBV ES BB
(2008 F W AMEBIEZR ) - & BIEH
2008 F £ 2009 F R FEFAB - H A
AFEHREHR17.5% FABME16.5% °
bt BEMNESRH B AEE G ER
i A3 R K 16.5% (2007 : 17.5%) &t

H o
=5

FEEAMEANAT A IEERAR
AR BEZEZMBRRZERB R
BZHBELEMEN -

BRI B A ERZ GG - #1088 RGR
AR A(FEERE) DR ESF
HOWE —FREBROMEZEHETEH
ESEH - BEER=ZFRIZ A 50%
Fimmhh - ERIEMFES @ ZEHBE
BELTEEAN - B (HKE)NE—F
FEFBE £ R 2006 F ©

R2007FE3 A 16 H » B H BER
FELE 63 FHBEMP RABEMSTIE)
([#FHE]) - 2007 F12 A6 H »
Bl B 75 Be B8 R sz i B RO B e 4l Al - 4R
BHHERERMEA - B52008F1 A1
Hie - ANEE A RFTE D AN
EMEHRER 3% NHE25% ° A
ESENFREMNBAREANAEBHEN
F18% & 25% (2007 : 15% £ 33%) °
FEREFRFEE A FAZARMAGEERNEE
BN BESENTRBFHNFR o
BEB)RPRECEMBSRAAIZS
50% % T # B © B3 20084 Z 20104
Bl = F 2 MEBHAI18%ZEFENE
22% ° 2011 F 8 - PR EMEH
5 25% ©

HRARBREMBAREE L L ERE
RRAE - FtRE M BRI EAE
B MSTIE B
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10. Taxation Charge (Continued) 10. MAXH (&)
The taxation charge for the year can be reconciled to FHRNEECHIBEL HIEEE REmR 2
the profit per the consolidated income statement as i A ERR AT
follows:
2008 2007
—ETNF —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#iT FET
Profit before taxation BR 5 A e A 52,559
Tax at the domestic tax rate 18% R E 18%
(2007: 15%) (2007 : 15% )T E 2B = 9,742 7,884
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR S 2 s 2
for tax purposes 7,429 4,080
Tax effect of income not taxable BRFRRBA Z TR
for tax purpose (3,506) (1,459)
Tax effect of tax concession MBSBEE BT E (19,250) (13,045)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  RIERMIEE B2 G & 6,896 4,842
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERA B E R ERE 2
differences not recognised B e 308 —
Utilisation of tax losses previously not A LRI AR ZHRIEEE
recognised (664) (841)
Effect of different tax rates RAREREEET
of subsidiaries operating in LB R E A A
other jurisdictions TR R 2 & 492
Decrease in opening deferred tax liability Bl & BB H1 & 5 > E 5
resulting from a decrease in applicable  JEIERITE & EEIIR S
tax rate 152
Taxation charge for the year FRFIBZ M 2,105
The domestic tax rate (which is the PRC enterprise FRNHEABNERE B LT i
income tax rate) in the jurisdiction where the operation @A E AT R (R B EER)
of the Group is substantially based is used.
Details of the deferred tax asset and liabilities are set BEFTBEE K AEFIBENHIFEST -
out in note 31.
S
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11. Profit Before Taxation 11. BRRAETR
2008 2007
—EENE —EERLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FRET FEr
Profit before taxation has been arrived B %4 Bl % A2 18R S5
at after charging: BE -
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments i8R & X IB Y (B3
for land (included in administrative FEITBEEA)
expenses) 2,133
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments =T8N EERIBE (BIE
for coast (included in administrative FEITBEEA)
expenses) 707
Amortisation of other intangible assets — H{th &R & E 4 (B IR
(included in cost of sales) ERAA) 2,163
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN € 1,812
Depreciation for property, plant and VI - MR REETE
equipment 22,611
Loss on disposal and write-off of s RAEE T - e AR
property, plant and equipment 2 EtE —
Minimum lease payments under KERHNREEE
operating leases:
— LPG vessel — RALEM 13,852
— Premises — =5 1,393
Sub-contracting fee B ER 346
Staff costs 1B B
Directors’ fees (note 12) 5 (Wit 12) 380
Directors’ other emoluments (note 12)  EZ=HMEM & (K7 12) 5,698
Contributions to retirement benefits % 60,000 B TLEFFAES
schemes excluding HK$60,000 i< (2007: 60,0007
(2007: HK$60,000) included in T ) ZBRREFIET S 5K
directors’ emoluments 658
Others HA 13,922

20,658
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12. Directors’ Emoluments

12. EEE&

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 8 (2007:

2 H8fiz(2007 - 9fu ) EE 2 Bl & 1A

9) directors were as follows: S e
Chiu Cheung Chan
Shum Sing Shum Wu Kwan Yuk Total
Siu  Chung, Cen Chun, Hong Hung, Wai, Xu 2008
Hung Raymond Ziniu Lawrence Cho Anthony Benedict Mingshe ZZE/\&
08 BED  FF4 8 HEE RBE  RER B &%
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$’000
FET TET TET TFErT TET TET FET TET TEL
Fees we
Other emoluments At
Salaries and other benefits 54 REMEH
Contributions to retirement R {REREH 23
benefits schemes
Total emoluments fis @
Chiu Cheung Chan
Sing Shum Wu Kwan Yuk Ma Total
Shum  Chung, Cen  Chun, Hong  Hung, Wai, Man Ho, Xu 2007
SiuHung  Raymond Ziniu Lawrence Cho Anthony Benedict ~ Joseph  Mingshe —ZZ+HF
LOE BRR ATHF 28 HEE ROE BME SNE BE af
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKE'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr  TEr  TEr  TEr FEr FEr FEr TEr TEr FEn
Fees He - - - - - 130 100 50 100 380
Other emoluments Hfo
Salaries and other benefits ~ E&  E i 3000 1254 684 400 300 - - - - 5838
Contributions to retirement R {FEAJFH 2l
benefits schemes 12 12 12 12 12 = = = = 60
Total emoluments Heag 3,012 1,266 696 42 312 130 100 50 100 6,078

No director waived any emoluments during both years.

RPMFRATEESHEETAHE -
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13. Employees’ Emoluments 13. EREl&
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments REBESEBEREHFALIBEIZEART
in the Group, three (2007: three) were directors of £5(2007 :3%) ' BEEMSFREER
the Company whose emoluments are included in the EXWE12EH R - HegoB AL
disclosures in note 12 above. The emoluments of the (2007 : 2B WERZ B2 AT

remaining two individuals (2007: two) were as follows:

2008 2007

—EZNE —ETLF

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FAEIT

Salaries and other benefits e KA fbEF 1,910
Contributions to retirement benefits RINEFFT B

schemes 24

1,934

Their emoluments of the two (2007: two) individuals 2%(2007 : 28) AT 2 BE&HNTF -

were within the following bands:

2008 2007

-1 J 1 - 3 —ETLF

No. of No. of

employees employees

EE®A EE#E

Nil to HK$1,000,000 % 1,000,000 % 7T - 2
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14. Dividend 14. B2
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
2007 final dividend recognised as FRNERDIK 2 2007 RAARR 2
distribution during the year
— HK1.1 cents (2006 final dividend: — T 1.1781L (2006 K HA
HK1 cent) per share B B 1AM 4,817

Subsequent to December 31, 2008, the directors
proposed a final dividend of HKO0.3 cent (2007: HK1.1
cents) per share be paid to the shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of
members on June 10, 2009. This final dividend is subject
to approval by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. On April 20, 2009, the number
of shares issued and fully paid is 963,353,374.

R 2008F 12 A31 B » EFEZMARN
20096 A10 B & 5 A 2 7] & &= & fit
ZARRARBIRZERBRE - BRIEE
0.3 L(2007 : 1.1781l) - KEAM BAE
HRERARERRAFAS LRAFE
EE - 20094 A208 2% TR
B HEE 5 963,353,374 )% °
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15. Earnings per Share 15. SEREF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per ARz LTRERFE ARESRER
share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the TEsE RN TR Ny B8R E

Company is based on the following data:

2008 2007
—ETNF —EEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FETT FET

Profit attributable to the equity holders B} A RIIRAIE A A FE(L B LAEH
of the parent for the purpose of basic HHRERLEERF 2%

and diluted earnings per share ol 50,454
Weighted average number of ordinary Ftest E B IR E AR Z T/ hkE

shares for the purpose of basic 15 5 R AR B

earnings per share 623,672,335 529,844,356
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEROESTE

shares:
Options fERR 1,781,495
Weighted average number of ordinary REETE S IREE & F 5y i

shares for the purpose 14 3 AR AR X

of diluted earnings per share 623,672,335 531,625,851
The number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic BT E IR ER M58 B A A A%
and diluted earnings per share has been adjusted for the R EE #2008 F 10 A 183 B 2 AR EE
open offer on October 13, 2008. VEH AR
Diluted earnings is not shown as the exercise price of BAREATHEZERENTEESRE
the share options outstanding is higher than the average Z2008F 12 A31 HIEFEMEHL T
market price for shares for the year ended December 31, MiFE » B EEREERA o

2008.
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. ¥ - BBRBGH
Furniture,
fixtures
Gas  Gas pumps and
Construction Leasehold ~ Plantand  plant and and  equipment Motor
inprogress  Buildings improvements  machinery  facilities  equipment  f&fl KE vehicles Total
ERIE BF HEWREE OBERRG RERBE  REREA Rit RE it
HK§'000 HK$:000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FAr 7ET FAT 7ET FAT FET FAT FAT AT
COST A
At January 1, 2007 Ro7E1A18 190,919 5997 2011 1,084 204,144 63,859 9,345 4,338 481,697
Acquired on acquisifon of KB ARG
subsiolaries = 1,831 = = 12523 3,296 226 31 21,087
Additions RE 171,916 8172 106 - 7206 17 336 289 191,860
Transfer L (213,646) - - - 16068 50,965 - - -
Disposals and write-off ~ HERHH (1,700) - - - (1,084) (498) (339) (350) (3921)
Adjustment (nofe) a2 (146,183) - - - - - - - (146,183)
Exchange realignment fEEE 1671 869 - 79 11,385 6,552 621 630 22,007
At December 31, 2007 Ro007E12A318 3176 16,869 2117 1,163 396,905 124,901 10,189 10727 566,047
Additions HE 10994 = 41 478 56,842 15,674 708 2,641 87752
Transfer g2 (3,083) 3,083 = = = = = = =
Disposals and wrte-offt ~ HERME - - (93) - = (19) (329) (173) (610)
Exchange realignment JEER 307 1,086 - 73 13795 7710 551 01 24,283
At December 31, 2008 R2008%12A431 A 11,394 21,038 2439 1714 467542 148,326 11123 13,896 677472
DEPRECIATIONAND  HERHE
IMPAIRMENT
At January 1, 2007 B00TE1 1R 1,700 1307 1,046 63 14196 18,406 4,637 1,751 43105
Provided for the year Epie = 9% 406 67 10,492 8100 1,211 1,408 2,611
Eiiminated on disposals and 1\ Rif e
witg-0ff (1,700 - - - (1034) (489) (184) (340) (374)
Exchange realignment EER - 129 - 7 848 1438 355 189 2966
At December 31, 2007 R00TE12A31 A - 2,363 1,451 137 24,502 27455 6,019 3,008 64,985
Provided for the year EhEf - 1,950 473 106 20277 11,685 849 ALl 37467
Eiminated on disposals and ~ RE & R e
write-off - - (1) - - ] (294) (120) (432)
Exchange realignment fEEE - 73 - 7 1078 1,696 312 20 3,465
At December 31, 2008 #2008 12A31R - 4,486 1913 20 45,854 407119 6,886 5,267 105,435
CARRYING VALUES Kig
At December 31, 2008 R008F12A31H 11,304 16,552 526 1,464 421,688 107547 4237 8629 572,031
At December 31, 2007 Ro007£12A31R 3176 14,506 666 1,026 372403 97,446 4170 19 501,112
7
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Note: During the year ended December 31, 2007, a refund
of approximately HK$146,183,000 was paid by the
construction contractor (the “Contractor”) in relation to
the construction in progress in Zhuhai LPG terminal. Due
to the construction error committed by the Contractor, the
construction in progress became impaired and need to
be adjusted. Since the Contractor is fully responsible for
the construction error, a full refund on the construction
cost was compensated by the Contractor and thus no
impact on the consolidated income statement of the

Group.
Buildings Over the term of the lease
Leasehold improvements 20% to 33'/,%
Plant and machinery 5% to 33'/,%
Gas plant and facilities Over the lease term
of coast use right
Gas pumps and equipment 10% to 33'/,%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15% t0 16°/,%
Motor vehicles 16°/:% to 33'/3%

The buildings are situated outside Hong Kong, in the
PRC, and are held on land under medium term leases.

The gas plant under construction are situated outside
Hong Kong, in the PRC, and are held under medium
term leases.

16. M - MBR&MW(Z)

Hat

e

MR2007F12 A1 BEE - —ABH
([# B ])iRE4 146,183,000 7T
HEKGRERMMETI TREEEMNR
He AAABBNIREEAHE T
ERHESZIEENTZEE  BA
ABETEEA LEHERNET A8
FEREEHEZEBELRHE  BRY
SENGERERERIEHE -

REFH

HEYERE 20% % 33"/,%
He2S T 35 5% % 33'/,%
RUE K 5% T 8

HAFH

RERE MR 10% % 33"/,%

R 1
e

HEBRHRE  15%F 16%:%

16%/,% % 33"/,%

BFHURBBEIN T EIAFHIHE
WRA -

EREREIIINEERIN B AT
HIHARER -
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17. Prepaid Lease Payments for Land 17. THRFGHEREA
2008 2007
—EINE —EERLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT

The Group’s prepaid lease payments for AE&EE 2 +ithFEHEZKIE
land comprise: B

Land use rights outside Hong Kong, in  R&B SN2 1 B LA Ef

the PRC under medium term leases THARRE 2 T fE AR
Analysed for reporting purposes as: LR EENDT
Non-current asset EMBEE
Current asset MENEE
18. Prepaid Lease Payments for Coast 18.

The Group’s prepaid lease payments for AEE 2 /EFFENHEEZIE
coast comprise: B

Coast outside Hong Kong, in the PRC RBEBREINZ BN LA B

under medium term leases HARE 2 8F
Analysed for reporting purposes as: LR E BN
Non-current asset EREEE
Current asset MENEE

The prepaid lease payments for coast represent the
rights to use a coast in Zhuhai ranging from 20 years to
28 years, starting from January 1, 1999.

55,602

53,391
2,211

55,602

BERMEARE

2008 2007
—EENE  —TTE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FHT

BEEMNEER

13,022

12,290
732

13,022

BERKEZBER

- #1999F1 A1 BH%K @ HE!

ZEO0E 284 o
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19. Goodwill 19. B8
HK$’000
FET
COST 5% 3
At January 1, 2007 #K2007F1A1H8 130,004
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 32) WM B AR (#17£32) 11,482
Eliminated on liquidation of a subsidiary B AR5 B R 4 5H (45,576)
Adjustment to goodwill due to utilisation R IBERITIE G E 2 B B
of pre-acquisition tax losses (442)
Exchange realignment SN R 7,155
At December 31, 2007 HR2007F12A31H 102,623
Acquisition of additional interest WhE—MIE AR IMER (H15232)
in a subsidiary (note 32) 13,741
Adjustment to goodwill due to utilisation AU IE R IE B 18 < R B A
of pre-acquisition tax losses (135)
Exchange realignment IR 7,207
At December 31, 2008 R2008F12 A31H 123,436
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At December 31, 2008 7R2008F12 H31H 123,436
At December 31, 2007 R2007F12A31H 102,623
As explained in note 7, the Group uses business WM EE7 Pl - NEEAEB D EEER
segments as its primary segment for reporting segment REDHERZEZD T - BURERIR
information. For the purposes of impairment testing, ms - IE&HESHIBENSIRIE
goodwill set out above have been allocated to seven REBITEZ7E(2007 : 7@) BEHH
(2007: seven) individual cash generating units (CGUs) in SEAER -
the LPG segment.
During the year ended December 31, 2008, the BZE2008F12A31H  XEEERE
management of the Group determines that there is no RAEEARNBESELAEM(BEERETE
impairment of any of its CGUs containing goodwill with FH BB EBIRBE -
indefinite useful lives.
\
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19. Goodwill (Continued)

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above
CGUs and their major underlying assumptions are
summarised below:

The recoverable amount of this unit has been
determined based on a 20-year value in use calculation.
That calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering
a b5-year period, and discount rate of 15.3% (2007:
14.4%). The cash flows beyond financial budgets are
extrapolated using a steady 10% growth rate for a
5-year period. The cash flows in the following 10-year
period are extrapolated using a nil growth rate. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculations related
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is
based on the unit’s past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any
of these assumptions would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of the CGU to exceed the aggregate
recoverable amount of the CGU.

19.

meE)

REREELBEUREASERETE
BRARREZNT

B EREDREFEEMFER20
FEEEBTE ZhARATEEBDIE
Z5FUBHEERFNE S RETEA &
Bh 3] R 15.3% (2007 : 14.4%) 5+ & o
BEVBEER2HSRASFHHE
EWER10% L - BER10F2HE
A R R O0% HEH - A EFREED
HihFZRE - HEANBRESAA R
H TEEHEEEEREER  %EE
BRBEEMNBAXERETEIME
TR ER - BEEMRE  ZERR
EEMAENA N ES - BAERS
HeEEEMMAKE BRABREELE
BARREIWE -
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20. Other Intangible Assets 20. HfthiELEE

Sub-
Distribution Business contracting
network license agreements Total
SHA® Ex 1] %848R #E
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET T BT
COST BE
At January 1, 2007 R 2007F1A1R8 - - - -
Acquired on acquisition of W BRAIME (f232)
subsidiaries (note 32) 2,240 3,655 12,100 17,995
Exchange realignment SNEEE 46 280 771 1,097
At December 31, 2007 #2007 F12 A31H 2,286 3,935 12,871 19,092
Exchange adjustments HNE T 266 228 913 1,407
At December 31, 2008 R 2008412 A31H 2,552 4,163 13,784 20,499
AMORTISATION AND HMBRRE
IMPAIRMENT
At January 1, 2007 #2007 1A1A8 - - - -
Charge for the year FRXH 65 398 1,700 2,163
Exchange realignment HNESE 2 15 62 79
At December 31, 2007 200712 A31H 67 413 1,762 2,242
Charge for the year FRLH 70 432 1,845 2,347
Exchange adjustments HINE T 5 31 135 171
At December 31, 2008 R 2008412 A31H 142 876 3,742 4,760
CARRYING VALUES IRE{E
At December 31, 2008 R 2008412 A31H 2,410 3,287 10,042 15,739
At December 31, 2007 R 2007F12 A31H 2,219 3,522 11,109 16,850

Distribution network, the business license and the
subcontracting agreements were acquired from third
party in business combination.

The above intangible assets have definite useful lives.
Such intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the following periods:

Distribution network 10 years
Business license 10 years
Subcontracting agreements 5-9 years

HEMG  XBERRIABARIER
HE=DEBAHEEA -

LB AEARROAERY - ZF
B EAEGIE AT 2 T AT A
HRBEEH

S & A9 4% 104
FESHER 104
EBE 5-94F
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21. Interest in a Jointly Controlled Entity 21.

FLEMRER—HHE
R B Z AR
FrEBEARER

Cost of unlisted investment in a jointly
controlled entity
Share of post-acquisition losses

As at December 31, 2008, the Group had interest in the
following jointly controlled entity:

Form of Principal
business Country of place of
Name of entity structure incorporation operation
NCER ERRAER B TEERN
EBMmRHNRER A Incorporated ~ PRC PRC
(185 ]) (Note) (47it) A i e

Note:

The Group’s entitlement to share in the profits of its jointly
controlled entity is in proportion to its ownership interest
after the sub-contracting period mentioned in the following
paragraph.

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Qingxin
Bai Fu Yang Petrol Chemical Company Limited (“BFY?”),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and the joint
venture partner of #&#7 (the “Venturer”) on November 3,
2006, the operation of &%1 has been sub-contracted to
BFY with a sub-contracting period of 8 years.

—REERFHERES
The Group
FEE
2008 2007
—ETN\E —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
13,073
(571)
12,502
R2008F 12831 H  "&EE#H A T 7
HEEGE 2
Proportion of
nominal
value of
registered
capital
Fully paid up held by
registered the Group
capital ~ FEMEME  Nature of
2#R BMEE  business
EmEx mERA EEHE
RMB2,250,000 49% Sale and distribution
2,250,000 A K% of LPG
HERAHRIER
Kzt
AEBMEEAREGER LB ZFES
ETVRL TREFIRR 2 A% HER JﬂE

AR R PIGHE o

REARRZE2EMBRARBMERE
ARBETAERAB(BEEF]) REH
MmaEBH(TERESE)R20064 11 A
BHRIM 2% - BN TAEEF
KL BRHPRBE -




104| NewOcean Energy Holidings Limited #1&s2REE AR AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
rE B RA T

For the year ended December 31, 2008

EtZE 2008 4 12 A 31 HIFF/E
21. Interest in a Jointly Controlled Entity

(Continued)

Included in the cost of unlisted investment in a
jointly controlled entity is goodwill of approximately
HK$6,139,000 (2007: HK$6,139,000) arising on
acquisition of a jointly controlled entity in prior years.

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s jointly controlled entity which is accounted for
using the equity method is set out below:

Current assets MENE B
Non-current assets FEMBNEE
Current liabilities mEBE
Income N

Expenses S

21.

—RiFARHERER (2

FELTIRER —HHEFIZESIE S 2R
ERRBAFERE —HXREMNEE
fF BT 25 £ A9 96,139,000 7 7T (2007 :
6,139,000/8 ) Z & -

A S5 [ 0 24 D 42 B 22 7 O
AR E) T -

The Group
*T5H
2008 2007
—EENEF —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

872 1,271

5,774 5,716

(643) (624)

16,143 23,633

(16,503) (23,063)
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22. Other Assets 22, Hthi&E
2008 2007
—EEN\E —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#T FET
Rental deposit for LPG vessel (Note a) RIbRME &R (fita) 13,307
Deposit for acquisition of additional UG BE— i B A R REIMERS 2 17 22,452
equity interest of a subsidiary (Note b) & (K1t b)
Deposit for acquisition of equity interest Wi — B AR RS —
of a subsidiary (Note c) (HieEe)
35,759
Notes: HiaE -
(a) Due to the delay in completion of the construction (8 HBHRREERMZBEIEEMIT

of LPG vessel and the lessor is in the process of
applying the worldwide shipping licenses according
to the agreed terms in the lease agreement, the
LPG vessel lease term has not commenced in the
year ended December 31, 2008.

(b) This related to advance payment for acquisition (b)
of the additional equity interest of 39% in &/t
BEMRRARAT (“2%E”), a company established
with limited liability under the laws of the PRC. The
acquisition of the additional equity interest was
completed during the year. The Group acquired
51% of the equity interest in 2% on January 1,

2007 and the details are disclosed in note 32.

(c) This relates to deposit paid for acquisition of the (c)
entire equity interest in KBAM=BRIERAF], a
company established with limited liability under
the laws of the PRC. Additional consideration for
approximately HK$16,340,000 will be paid subject
to certain conditions being fulfilled by the vendor.

R mMERENEREEERETH
1R BB M SRR - Rl 3R
EEMEEE LN EE2008F12 A
31 BIEFERDARRELR °

Z A SA B R — RS BDA
BIEMRIAEREEAREMNTE
EMRBRRB([ZF ) FRIN39%
s A ST 2 5RIE - FAE TR S
MmNz - NEEN 2007 F1 A1
HEBAZES 1% D FIHRERH
7L 32 R o

Z K8 A B 5 RS 1 R R B Il 5
MRz ABREEATELT =B
RERAFEBESCHZATR - 4
16,340,000 8 T 2 FEIMCE KR E X
FERBIBIRHR S -
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23. Inventories 23. &F®
2008 2007
—EEN\E 2T
HK$°000 HK$’000
FAT FET
LPG BAESR, 51,709 56,407
Electronic products BfEmMm 85,957 70,518
137,666 126,925
The cost of inventories charged to the consolidated FRFABRERERZTFERNRBL
income statement for the year amounted to approximately 5,931,218,000 % 7.(2007 : 3,719,247,000
HK$5,931,218,000 (2007: HK$3,719,247,000). BIL) °
24. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other 24, BEWBEHER  BURE - HtufE
Debtors, Deposits and Prepayments KRR - e RAMTRIE
2008 2007
—ETN\EF —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
Trade debtors FE W B 5 BR K 424,993 430,532
Bills receivable e IR 22,678 331

447,671 430,863
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24. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other 24, BIGE IR - BUrEIE - HME

Debtors, Deposits and Prepayments
(Continued)

The Group allows an average credit period of 180 days.
The bills receivable are matured within the range of 30
to 90 days. The following is an aged analysis of trade
debtors and bills receivables at each balance sheet
date:

0 to 30 days 0ZE 30K
31 to 60 days 31 260X
61 to 90 days 61 290K
91 to 180 days 912 180K
Over 180 days HBiE 180K

Included in the Group’s trade debtors, are debtors of
approximately HK$122,898,000 (2007: HK$84,833,000)
denominated in USD, which is not the functional
currency of the relevant group entities.

Included in the Group’s trade debtors balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$3,191,000 (2007: HK$42,308,000) which are past
due at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances. The trade debtors
past due but not provided for were either subsequently
settled as at the date of this report or no historical
default of payments by the respective customers. The
average age of these receivables is 167 days (2007: 242
days).

WIER - ReERAFMKRER(E)

REEBZFHEEHA180K - ERE
BEZRHHBANTI0ZE0H - REELL
HAERWE SRR EREEIZRR S
T

2008 2007
—ETNF —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FHEIT

134,335 344,826
30,578 11,949
279,567 22,949
1,993 9,363
1,198 41,776

447,671 430,863

AEBZEBKESREFRLQ
122,898,000 7% 7L (2007 : 84,833,000 7
TLIRETLEE  YETBEREHEEE

BERRZEERK -

RBER AEENEKE ZER
BREE AR - 42 BR E {8 £93,191,000% 7T
(2007 : 42,308,000/ 7t ) By & 5 & I
RRE R - EARKERERERELE
o AEBIWEFEEMERZERERK
BRRXMERNKETRY - AEEZEK
ZZERDEHERE BB AN KR
EHBENSRHEBE S BT ESE IR
TH o ZERBEERNFEHRER A167 X
(2007 : 242°K) °
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24. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other 24, BKEZIER  BISRE - HtE

Debtors, Deposits and Prepayments

(Continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but BBREREEZEREZERZIRER
not impaired
2008 2007
—EEN\E —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
91-180 days 91-180 X 1,160
181-365 days 181-365 &~ 41,141
Over 365 days BiH 365K 7
Total P 42,308
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RIRERZEE
2008 2007
—EEN\E —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Balance at beginning of the year FYHEA 326
Impairment losses recognised on trade  FLIEWE 58k 2 & E A Uk BF
and other debtors THER B E =
Amounts written off as uncollectible VE A A [0 ZRIEH BR (326)
Balance at end of the year FRER =

WIER - ReERAFMKRER(E)
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24.

25.

Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other
Debtors, Deposits and Prepayments
(Continued)

During the year ended December 31, 2008, trade
receivables of approximately HK$17,167,000 (2007: nil)
are written off to consolidated income statement due to
the default in principal payments or under liquidation.
The Group did not hold any collateral over these
balances. Included in the allowance for doubtful debts
for 2007 were individually impaired trade receivables
with an aggregate balance of approximately HK$326,000
which had either been placed under liquidation or in
severe financial difficulties. The Group did not hold any
collateral over these balances. The amount had been
fully written off in the year ended December 31, 2007.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, other
receivables of approximately HK$1,115,000 (2007: nil) are
written off to consolidated income statement due to the
default in principal payments or under liquidation. The
group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Included in other debtors, there is a trade deposit paid
to a supplier of approximately HK$368,657,000 (2007:
HK$59,160,000) in relation to the purchase of LPG which
will be delivered within one year in PRC.

Amount Due from a Jointly Controlled Entity

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

24.

25.

iR SRR - BIRE - HfthfE
WER - BERAMRIR(E)

REZE2008F 12 A31 HIEFEERF » 4
17,167,000/ 7o (2007 : £ ) Z fE g &
SEEFR G E MR PME - A5EH
WEREEMERZEREKE SRR
ARSI Y o 72007 F R BR H) B
EET - BB N E 5B EUR
Z 5 R E(E X 326,000 7T 0 ZEY
AEESENEHRENBRENFIE -
REBMYEZERAWLIHEBLHE - %
SBENEZE2007F 12 A1 BIEFE
2 HUER ©

REZE2008F 12 A31HIEFERN © 4
1,115,000 75 (2007 : )z Efb fEUR
BRI R ee (BB B sk m RS & i
FERIRE MBS mER P o AEEIE
B U B 5% 5 £ b FE R SR B (R
AR IR o

FEEMBUWIRRF - BER—HER
#9368,657,000% 7t (2007 : 59,160,000
BILINESZEeEERILR LR
—FE R ©

Bl — R RFHREZRE

BRAAY EIEH - REURBRES
}:%‘0
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26. Pledged Bank Deposits, Bank Balances and 26. EEARTER  SBITERRAS

Cash

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The
deposits have been pledged to secure short-term bank
loans, and are therefore classified as current assets. The
pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$725,187,000
(2007: HK$744,435,000) carry at fixed interest rates
which ranged from 3.42% to 4.14% (2007: 2.52% to
4.14%) per annum and will be released upon settlement
of the relevant bank borrowings. The remaining pledged
bank deposits carry at floating interest rates which
ranged from 0.01% to 4.45% (2007: 1.95% to 4.97%)
per annum and will be released upon settlement of the
relevant bank borrowings.

The bank balances carried interest at market rates which
ranged from 0.01% to 1.71% (2007: 0.72% to 5.125%)
per annum.

At the balance sheet date, the RMB pledged bank
deposits of approximately HK$686,078,000 (2007:
HK$738,513,000) were pledged for the bank trust
receipts loans.

At the balance sheet date, the pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$820,365,000 (2007: HK$793,979,000) were
denominated in RMB which is not freely convertible
into other currencies. Included in the Group’s bank
balances, are approximately HK$42,315,000 (2007:
HK$55,502,000) denominated in USD, which is not the
functional currency of the relevant group entities.

EEFRBETEAER ANERITEEM
TR FIRTZR|ITHER - AEEFEZ
BITERDEBREEHETER &
LUm B & = ARk » 49725,187,0007% 7T
(2007 : 744,435,000 7T ) 2 B &
WITHER EEEFFHEE3.42%E
4.14% (2007 : 2.52% £ 4.14%) @ I #%
RIEEBRBIRITERERGRR - BT ZE
EAHRBRITEREZHFHEE0.01% =
4.45% (2007 : 1.95% £ 4.97%) @ W
RIBER RRTTIE SRS ARER ©

RITHERMBEMIERITAE  HFEEN
F0.01% E1.71% (2007 : 0.72% &
5.125%) °

REEEH » #47686,078,0007% 7T(2007 :
738,513,000/ 70 ) 2 B3 A REE IR 1T
GEREEMRITETLUIEEE -

REER BEERBRITERARRITLA
fh & I8 € #9820,365,000 7% (2007 :
793,979,000/ L) A A BB EE » I
TR EREREHMEBE - AEE IR
17 &5 £ R 4942,315,000%8 75(2007 :
55,502,000/ T ) AETTEE » B
RIEBEEEER 2 NEE -
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27. Trade Creditors and Bills Payable, Other 27. BN ESERREMRE HtiE
Creditors and Accrued Charges TR REHER
The aged analysis of trade creditors is as follows: FERTE S RRIRRR DT :
2008 2007
ZEBNEF T F
HK$°000 HK$’000
TF#ET T
0 to 30 days 0Z 30K 141,056 181,674
31 to 60 days 31 260K — 130,449
Over 90 days @ 90 K 404 247
141,460 312,370
Bills payable AN 180,627 69,446
322,087 381,816
The bills payable are matured within the range of 0 to 60 B ZE 2 28BN FoEOK
days (2007: O to 60 days). (2007 : 0EBOK) ©
Included in the Group’s trade creditors and bills payable NREFBZENESEREANENZIEHRY
are amounts of approximately HK$265,595,000 (2007: 265,595,0007% 7t (2007 : 381,167,000
HK$381,167,000) denominated in USD, which is not the BTT)AETEE  WEAETERNABEE

functional currency of the relevant group entities. EER I EE -
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28. Borrowings, Partly Secured 28. fE® — EBHHIEWN
2008 2007
—EENE 2T
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#TT FET
Bank trust receipts loans SRITEEMUE SR 587,732 291,569
Bank trust receipts loans RITE IR B 677,602 713,179
(pledged with RMB bank deposits) (BEBARKERITFR)
Other bank loans EAIRITIEK 152,156 212,407
Other long-term loans Hh R A E K = 53,265
Bank overdrafts RITBEX 1,806 =
1,419,296 1,270,420
Analysed as: AR iv=E
Secured B 936,954 978,923
Unsecured S 482,342 291,497
1,419,296 1,270,420
Carrying amount repayable: FENBREE :
Within one year —FER 1,309,045 1,064,999
More than one year, but not BBE—FENZAME 48,633 95,170
exceeding two years
More than two years, but not HBAMFENZHRAF 61,618 110,251
exceeding five years
1,419,296 1,270,420
Less: Amounts due within one year IR IRBRBIBERRR (1,309,045) (1,064,999)
shown under current liabilities —F AR ER
110,251 205,421
\.
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28. Borrowings, Partly Secured (Continued)

Bank trust receipts loans include approximately
HK$838,081,000 (2007: HK$846,525,000) fixed-rate
borrowings which are due within one year and carry
average interest at 6.15% (2007: 5.76%) per annum. The
remaining bank loans are variable-rate borrowings which
carry interest ranged from London Inter-Bank Offered
Rate (“LIBOR”) + 1.25% to LIBOR + 1.75% per annum
ranging from 1.71% to 11% (2007: 5.36% to 8.50%).

Other bank loans of the Group comprise of: (a) an
amount of approximately HK$147,198,000 (2007:
HK$171,160,000) drawn under a term loan facility
secured by a floating charge over the assets of the
Company, and by share mortgages of the issued
capital and floating charges over the assets of Sound
Hong Kong Limited and NewOcean Shenzhen Energy
Investment Limited; and (b) an amount of approximately
HK$4,958,000 (2007: HK$41,247,000) drawn under a
term loan facility guaranteed by the Company.

As at December 31, 2008, bank overdrafts carry interest
at market rate ranged from 2.96% to 5.28% per annum.

As at December 31, 2007, other long-term loans of
approximately HK$53,265,000 were unsecured, bearing
variable interest rate at best lending rate at the PRC
which was 7.56% per annum and were fully repaid
during the year ended December 31, 2008.

28.

fam — BMHEFEHRH)

R 17 {5 56 W & 5 X+ 49838,081,000
7 (2007 : 846,525,000/ Tt ) & F
BEEH EFFEXE6.15% (2007 :
576%) ' —FRNEE - 8T 2BTE
REAEESFEMER  EFFEAEMB
HERTTRIZERBE +1.25% = R KE1TH
E /K B+1.75% ' N F171%9ZE11%
(2007 : 5.36% %= 8.50%) °

AEBEZHEMBITERES (@ —ELD
147,198,000 7t (2007 : 171,160,000
BIL)UARRBICEEEZEBZEBZE
HIEREE - WERTUFTEEEER
RAIRFECRIDEREEER AR Z
BEETEIRE  MAZEARZE %
T2 REEET - & (b)4)4,958,000/%8
7t(2007 : 41,247,0007 7T ) 2 F 2 1&
HEE  WHAARRRERERA °

MR2008F 12 A31H @ RITELZ 2 TH
AEBERNFHE2.96%E5.28% °

R 2007512 A318 - 453,265,000
BT EMRHAERAEER - ERS
BemEBEENE AEHFNERETF
7.56% & WA 2008 FEEEH -




114]

NewOcean Energy Holidings Limited &G REEER A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
rE B RA T

For the year ended December 31, 2008
EtZE 2008 4 12 A 31 HIFF/E

28. Borrowings, Partly Secured (Continued)

28.

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in
currencies which are not the functional currencies of the

relevant group entities are set out below:

As at December 31, 2008
As at December 31, 2007

29. Share Capital

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
(2007: HK$0.10 each)

Authorised share capital:
At January 1, 2007, December 31, 2007 and
2008

Issued and fully paid share capital:
At January 1, 2007 and January 1, 2008

Issue of shares due to open offer (Note)

At December 31, 2008

R 2008412 A31H
R 2007 512 A31H

29.

EREEE0IBTZEAR
(2007 : &2 0.1077T)

TR

200741 A18 - 2007 F R

2008412 A31H

BETRAERE:
20071 A1RR
20081 A1H
DB EMETZIRG
(H1at)

R 2008412 A31H

Note: On October 13, 2008, 481,676,687 shares of HK$0.10
each were issued by way of open offer at a subscription
price of HK$0.3 per share. These new shares rank pari
passu in all respects with other shares in issue.

fam — BMHEFEHRH)

AREE 2 BFRAGEEE - MALIEERE
SEERZINEER - BT

usbD EUR

BT Ex T

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEIT FEIL

1,329,568 72,214

1,014,096 —

. 3

Number

of shares Amount

& H 4]

HK$’000

FET

20,000,000,000 2,000,000

481,676,687 48,168

481,676,687 48,168

963,353,374 96,336

Hfst - 2008410 A 13 H, AAREER
AEBR0IBTHRBEEEITERE
B0 TR - ZEFEMRA ST
[ 2 HoAth B 34T 2 IR0 AE R -
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30. Share-based Payment Transactions

Equity-settled share option scheme:

(i)

Old Share Option Scheme

OIld Employee Share Option Scheme

The old employee share option scheme (the “Old
Option Scheme”), was adopted by the Company on
April 9, 1999 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to directors and eligible employees, and
will expire on April 8, 2009. Under the Old Option
Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company
may at their discretion grant options to directors or
employees of the Company and its subsidiaries to
subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance
with the terms of the Old Option Scheme. The
subscription price (subject to adjustments as
provided therein) is the higher of the nominal value
of the shares and an amount which is not less than
80 percent of the average of the closing price per
share on the Stock Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date the option is
granted. The maximum number of option shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the
Old Option Scheme shall not exceed 10 percent
of the share capital of the Company in issue from
time to time. At December 31, 2008 and 2007, no
granted options remained outstanding under the
Old Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options might be granted to a participant,
when aggregated with shares issued and issuable
(including exercised and outstanding options and
the options cancelled) under any option granted to
the same participant under the Old Option Scheme
or any other share option scheme within any 12
month period, must not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

30. LBiRfrREREZiH

IARE 25 32 2 R R g AT

(i)

FERMER R

FEERBREHNE

ApalRBEEEEREFEI(R
A it & 1) m1999%F4 A9H &
M ETZEMNAERNESTRAEE
BETIREHEB - Zir 88 R
2009F 4 HSsHH /M BIERA
e ARAFREZEA NIBAE
MAARMREHNBERARIZES K
B B & Al RIR R A & &l R R
BARRIRMD ERE - RBE
(kEELERBFERTEZH
) ARG EES MER IR L ZE
B E AR5 ER S B (7 B
R P2 Tk 19 0 T B 80% (MA
BRERE) RERABEFAM
B IR ] R 2 RN BHAE
BRANAETEREEITRA10% -
72008 & 2007 F 12 A 31 8 -
BERETE - WESBEERETR
1T BERRHE o

& BRI AR ST B S A A
BT R EIR T2 EE 2 M
BREE T ZEBITRY TEITZ
BOHBE (BEETEREFEHEZ
Bl EEFTER - NME[ 12 E
ARBH2MEEER 2 BIREMY
MzaaBROhE8E T TEBATKE
BT 21% °
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30. Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued)

Old Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Old Employee Share Option Scheme
(Continued)

There was no requirement for a grantee to hold the
option for a certain period before exercising the
option save as determined by the board of directors
of the Company and provided in the offer of grant
of option.

The exercise period should be any period fixed by
the board of directors of the Company upon grant
of the option but in any event the option period
should not go beyond 10 years from the date of
offer for grant.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must be
made within 28 days from the date of grant with a
non-refundable payment of HK$1 from the grantee
to the Company.

30. LR ERZIHE)

(i)

ERM R (E)

FERRBREHE (E)

BARRBEZERE MRE B
RS IRESN - R T I E R E A
BABRITEERERNCHEBK
BB -

BRESRASNRAEEZENR
H BB R I 15 2 (AT AR - MR
TEABRT  ERESETFER
RRH 2 AL 10 FRKE -

A AR AR - MARKH
HEARLET 28 H MM AR AR 1
BT AT ERE -
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30. Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued) 30.
(i) Old Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Old Employee Share Option Scheme
(Continued)

The following tables disclose details of the
Company’s share options held by employees
(including directors) and movements in such
holdings during the year:

Option  Date Exercise
type of grant  Vesting period Exercisable period price
BRIEER BEAN BEY fTiEs TR

HK$

AT
2002A  314.2002  3.15.2002 to 9.14.2002  9.15.2002 to 9.14.2007 1.30

3.15.2002%9.14.2002  9.15.2002 £9.14.2007

2002B  6.26.2002  6.27.2002 to 11.25.2002 12.26.2002 to 12.25.2007 1.12

6.27.2002 £11.25.2002  12.26.2002 £12.25.2007

LIRgin B EREzTH (%)
() FERMERHEEE)

FERRBREHE (E)

TREBHER (BREF)KAR
REIBBREZFBRFRAZSHE
BB :

Number of share options

BRENE
Outstanding
at
12.31.2007
Outstanding and
at Lapsed 12.31.2008
1.1.2007 during #2007 £R
#2007 2007 2008
1A1AR% R2007% 12R31ARE
frEz#B REN fHEz#HE

6,400,000 (6,400,000) =

3,100,000 (3,100,000) =

9,500,000 (9,500,000) =
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30. Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued)

()

(ii)

Old Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Old Employee Share Option Scheme
(Continued)

Details of the share options held by the directors
and other key management included in the above
table are as follows:

1.1.2007 to 12.31.2007 H1.1.2007£12.31.2007
and 12.31.2008 $}12.31.2008

30. LR ERZIHE)

() FERMERHEEE)

FERRBREHE (E)

FREBETIHESEREMT
ZEERERABREZFE

Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
at beginning during at ending
of the year 2007 of the year
REMREK #2007 §F REREER
fTEZHAE eS| fTEZ#HE
6,000,000 (6,000,000) —

New Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
Special General Meeting of the Company held on
June 18, 2003, the Company adopted a new option
scheme (“New Option Scheme”) to replace the
Old Option Scheme. All the options granted under
the Old Option Scheme shall remain valid and
unchanged and shall be treated in accordance with
the terms under the Old Option Scheme.

(i) FAWBEHERTE

B AR F R 20034F6 A 18 H &
TREREASEAZ LRRE
ESRVINYNETES bl e -
BREAED  URREEBEK
RS o RIBER A BERETEIR T
ZFTEBREDEEXERET
B BZERERAEBRETSIER
BE e
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30. Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued)

(i)

New Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The purpose of the New Option Scheme is to
provide incentives or rewards to participants
including directors, employees, suppliers and
customers etc. Under the New Option Scheme,
the Board of Directors of the Company, may at
their discretion grant options to participants to
subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance
with the terms of the New Option Scheme. The
subscription price shall be a price determined by
the directors, but shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of offer for grant of options, which must be a
trading day; (ii) the average closing price of shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer for grant of options;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the New
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme
of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the shares in issue. Based on the 963,353,374
shares (2007: 481,676,687 shares) in issue as
at December 31, 2008 and 32,582,284 options
(2007: 29,500,000 options) outstanding under the
New Option Scheme, the total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the New Option Scheme and
any other schemes must not in aggregate exceed
96,335,337 shares (2007: 48,167,668 shares).

30. LR ERZIHE)

(ii)

MR EE B ()

FRRETEEZENARNES
BE #HERKEFE28EER
B sk 0] R o AR 4% 37 S AR A AT
g ARREZTEAMBRER
2 B2 % 0] AR BR 5 B AR AE T 8
ERRBEARAIRG Z BRRHE -
REBEREZET  EILEEK
RO TFHEREZ2B(WMES
RPH)  BROEHIMEHERE
KATH 2 BRI E () 2R
BRYBEREZBNSEARZH @ &
DEBRXMEAREBERAHTZTF
HUmERGFEOEEARS
HHE) o BEITE B IRE
£ 0 7N 55 B (] L b BF AR 42 5T 2
Rt bR m g T 8T 2R H
RE - TNEBBAAARBEEHITR
3 Z210% ° ¥ 12008 4F 12 A 31
H 2 B %17 & 0 5963,353,374
(2007 : 481,676,687 IX)stHE - B
B 18 AR AT 155 S BT AR A AT B P 1A
X 17 i 232,582,284 17 (2007 :
29,500,000 ) & f& # -+ KR 7
37 08 AR A 5T 8 K F ) H fth BB AR
EAERN 2 2 EREREITE
B ARQAA PETZERGDE
A £ T 158 596,335,337 i%
(2007 : 48,167,668 i%) °

—
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30. Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued)

(i)

New Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options might be granted to a participant,
when aggregated with shares issued and issuable
(including exercised and outstanding options and
the options cancelled) under any option granted
to the same participant under the New Option
Scheme or any other share option scheme within
any 12 month period, must not exceed 1% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

There was no requirement for a grantee to hold the
option for a certain period before exercising the
option save as determined by the board of directors
of the Company and provided in the offer of grant
of option.

The exercise period should be any period fixed by
the board of directors of the Company upon grant
of the option but in any event the option period
should not go beyond 10 years from the date of
offer for grant.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must be
made within 28 days from the date of grant with
a non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 from the
grantee to the Company.

The following tables disclose details of the
Company’s share options granted under the New
Share Option Scheme held by employees (including
directors) and movements in such holdings during
the two years ended December 31, 2008:

30. LR ERZIHE)

(ii)

MR R B ()

& B RIE T AR AT B S R A
AR BIIR T2 8% 2 (R
IE TN 2 BRBITRA] TEITZ’D
HE(BEETEREFIHECBR
BREEAEE - REF12EAR
BR2HEFER CERERSR 2
SR MHEE TESBATRE BT
Z1% °

BRARREEFTSRTE MR ER
RS AR TESN + WERTEAERAER
1T HE A AT B 45 B AR i — B
M e

BRESRASNRAAEEFENR
H BRI 1 2 (TR - R
TEABRT  ERESETFER
RRH 2 AL 10 FRKE -

A A AR - MARKH
HEAES28 A ARA R B HRA
BT AT ERE -

TRFEEARRIREFERERT
AR TFTRERE(BEES )RERE
2008 12 A31 HIFMEAFE 2
BEREFEN:
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30. Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued) 30. LinBERZIH (&)
(ii) New Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) WEBEEEHE(Z)

2008 —BENEF

Number of share options

HRENE
Outstanding Outstanding
at Adjusted at
1.1.2008 on 12.31.2008
Option Date Vesting Exercisable Exercise #2008 10.13.2008 #2008 %
type of grant period period price 118 B2008%F 12A31BA%
RREER BEAY REY T8 1R fiEz®E 10A13AAE fiEzHE
HK$ (Note)
AT (W)
2006A 5152006  5.16.2006to  6.17.2006 to 0.625 13,500,000 1,410,537 14,910,537
6.16.2006 12.31.2015
5.16.2006 6.17.2006 2
6.16.2006 12.31.2015
2006B 6.16.2006 - 6.17.2006 to 0.625 16,000,000 1,671,747 17,671,747
12.31.2015
6.17.2006 2
12.31.2015

29,500,000 3,082,284 32,582,284
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30. Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued) 30. LinBERZIH &)
(ii) New Share Option Scheme (Continued) (i) WA (Z)
2007 —ZEETLF

Number of share options

BRERE
Outstanding Outstanding
at at
1.1.2007 Lapsed 12.31.2007
Option Date Vesting Exercisable Exercise 120075 during 1200745
type of grant period period price 1R1B#HA the year 12 A31AKA
BREEN  EREH FE4 TEH 3 12 8E REREH I 8E
HK$ (Note)
BT (His)
2006A 5.15.2006 5.16.2006 to 6.17.2006 to 0.69 13,500,000 - 13,500,000
6.16.2006 12.31.2015
5.16.2006 2 6.17.2006 £
6.16.2006 12.31.2015
2006B 6.16.2006 - 6.17.2006 to 0.69 17,000,000 (1,000,000) 16,000,000
12.31.2015
6.17.2006 £
12.31.2015

30,500,000 (1,000,000) 29,500,000
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30. Share-based Payment Transactions (Continued)
(i) New Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of the share options held by the directors
included in the above table are as follows:

Outstanding
at beginning
of the year
RED
RRITE
Z#H

1.1.2008 to 12.31.2008 1.1.2008 £ 12.31.2008 16,000,000

30. LBiBfrREREZM (&)

(i) WA (Z)

E=RABERE BEE/BEL

= M

Adjusted Outstanding
on Lapsed at ending
10.13.2008 during of the year
#2008 & the year RER
10A13H RER fRITE
nE E3 Z#H

(Note)

(Hizt)
1,671,747 — 17,671,747

1.1.2007 to 12.31.2007 1.1.2007 £12.31.2007 17,000,000

(1,000,000) 16,000,000

Note: The number and the exercise price of options which
remained outstanding have been adjusted due to
open offer of shares in the Company with effect
from October 13, 2008. The exercise price per
share was adjusted from HK$0.69 to HK$0.625.

There was no share option granted for the years
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Kt 200810 A 13 HAE, ARAAEIA

ARBEHAEBITRG, BWART
FERE 8B RITHEEEIED
HE - GRITEBE H0.69%
TLHAEE 0.6258 7T °

#HZE 2008 %2007 12 A31 HIE
FE o WERDBRE -
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31.

Deferred Taxation

31.

The following are the major deferred liabilities (assets)
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during
the year and prior reporting year:

At January 1, 2007

Acquired on acquisition of
subsidiaries

(Credit) debit to the
consolidated income
statement for the year

Effect of change in tax rate

At December 31, 2007
(Credit) debit to the
consolidated income
statement for the year
Effect of change in tax rate
Exchange adjustments

At December 31, 2008

R2007F1A1E
WEEH B A BB FT {5

RAFEEARER(ARK)
b3

M2007 %12 A31 8
RAREELGZEWNER (AR)
LR

HEREYE
SNERE

12008412 A31 H

BIERIF

FAMBERESHHE AEECBERLZ
IZREAGE(BEE) REEESHNT:

Other
Accelerated intangible
tax Tax assets
depreciation losses Hitv#ER Total
MERARE REEE H"E =E:3
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
9,246 (2,636) - 6,610
3,596 — 4,499 8,095
(539) 706 (541) (374)
(152) — - (152)
12,151 (1,930) 3,958 14,179
(1,559) 363 (587) (1,783)
(197) 11 — (186)
672 — 564 1,236
11,067 (1,556) 3,935 13,446

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

ERERIAEE
EERAEAR

AT RRIER IR &R < DT IE 5 S

ZF

2008

ZEBINF
HK$’000

FET

1,556

(15,002)

(13,446)

2007
—EELF
HK$’000
FET

1,930
(16,109)

(14,179)
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31.

Deferred Taxation (Continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately HK$100,437,000
(2007: HK$69,139,000) available for offset against
future profits. Deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of approximately HK$8,556,000 (2007:
HK$11,880,000). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to remaining balances of
approximately HK$91,881,000 (2007: HK$57,259,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$5,803,000
(2007: HK$5,741,000) will be expired before year 2011
(2007: year 2010). Other losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

At the balance sheet date, the estimated tax losses
arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries amounted to
approximately HK$7,581,000 (2007: HK$8,331,000).

At the balance sheet date, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$8,080,000
(2007: HK$6,369,000) in respect of accelerated
accounting depreciation. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
differences as it is not probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

31.

BIERIF ()

REEE R - A% E b5 A SE R R
F 2 7 Bh A % 18 E5 48 49 /& 100,437,000
7 7C(2007 : 69,139,000 7T ) ° IE T
1A & E %R A 48,556,000/ 7T
(2007 : 11,880,000/ 7T) » A AKAETE
AR 1% 25aFP0R - AR T A%
#791,881,000,% 70(2007 : 57,259,000 /%5
TL) RIRIEFL IR & E © 7% % 495,803,000
7 70(2007 ¢ 5,741,000 7T ) R FER T 18
&5 18 45 72 2011 (2007 : 20104 ) AT HA
o Bt Es 1R R AT SR AR T DA AR EE o

REEH  AKRENBRARMES 2
=T %% 7 5 18 49 7,581,000 7% 7T.(2007
8,331,000/ 7T) °

REER  BEMRRERESR - A&
& 75 o] 051 E B 2= B8 49 8,080,000 7 7T
(2007 : 6,369,000/ 7Tt ) > A AR A
AR AR R E R = R AR 8 B 18
HEFERBOR T 2 AJREMET R + B &
RS NHENEERRECHEE
E o
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32. WAEMIE AT

32. Acquisition of Subsidiaries

For the year ended December 31, 2007 #HE2007F 12831 HILFEE
R2007FE1 A1H - &K & B N
#716,130,000% 7T 2 IR & K B
MBS HWE T EEEEER
REBRLE([FEH]) = -
ZHREBENRAEF 2BEEA
R HZBERBEECEHENA
10,886,000/ 7T ©

A. On January 1, 2007, the Group acquired the entire A.

equity interest in EEZEHEMIERAR ([FELHE])
for cash consideration and related expenses of
approximately HK$16,130,000. The acquisition had
been accounted for using the purchase method
of accounting. The amount of goodwill arising
as a result of the acquisition was approximately
HK$10,886,000.

ZERHIPHBZFEENUNRA
ULE S 2 BB ET

The net assets acquired in the transaction, and the
goodwill arising, were as follows:

Acquiree’s
carrying amounts
before
combinations Fair value
SRR E adjustments Fair value
ZIEmEE LTFERE LFE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Net assets acquired: IS 3EE:
Property, plant and M- EERERE 372 3,073 3,445
equipment
Other intangible assets ~ HftEEE — 3,274 3,274
Trade debtors RN E Z R 384 = 384
Other debtors, deposits Ef KRR RE & 379 - 379
and prepayments HERHIE
Inventories FE 742 — 742
Bank balances and RITHBER S 119 - 119
cash
Trade creditors R E SR (1,409) — (1,409)
Other creditors and Hofth AT BR 3R R e AT (103) = (103)
accrued charges HIE
Deferred tax liabilites — (EIEFBARE = (1,587) (1,587)
484 4,760 5,244
Goodwill PHE 10,886

16,130
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32. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued) 32. IRfEMIE AR (&)
For the year ended December 31, 2007 (Continued) B E2007F12A31 HILFEE(E)
A. (Continued) A (#E)
Total consideration satisfied by: HMEEL
HK$’000
FET
Cash AN 16,130
Deposit paid (Note) BfE (#i) (15,926)
204
Net cash outflow in respect of the acquisition for REE2007 512 A1 BIEFE,
the year ended December 31, 2007 was as follows: EAWEmMmEELEZHESEE RLF
BT
2007
—ETEF
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration paid (Note) Re N (H2) (204)
Bank balances and cash acquired g 2R MR e 119
(89)
Note: During the year ended December 31, 2006, a cash KBt : R2006F 12 A1 HIEFER ' B
consideration of approximately HK$15,926,000 was 8 15 49 15,926,000 7% Tt 1 Uk B8
prepaid for the acquisition of E# and the amount MEMRECRENE  BAESHE
was disclosed as other asset in the consolidated B 200612 A31H IE F &
balance sheet as at December 31, 2006. G EAEBERNEEN AR
HEE °
The goodwill arising on the acquisition of Eg# was WHEEMEE2HE AR
attributable to the anticipated profitability of the RIET %P A& BRI RIBH
distribution of the Group’s LPG in the market and mAl e R REEEE
the anticipated future operating synergies from ZHEME o AN EHEHEAH
the combination. In addition, FZ owned several @& R pna vk - I B 8L 3T B #
LPG stations close to the LPG terminal owned by BOERE)HESR 2 RIERATESE - &
#178 (%8) , in the opinion of the directors, this =R A I TB Uk BE A5 0N 58 D 07 Ak =R
acquisition would enhance logistic efficiency and WHERRME ZTHEEE -
improve the market share in Guangdong region.
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32. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2007 (Continued)

A.

(Continued)

B contributed approximately HK$6,649,000 and
approximately HK$583,000 to the Group’s revenue
and loss before taxation between the period from
the date of acquisition to December 31, 2007.

On January 1, 2007, the Group acquired the 51%
equity interest in 22 for cash consideration and
related expenses of approximately HK$16,618,000.
The acquisition had been accounted for using the
purchase method of accounting. The amount of
goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was
approximately HK$596,000.

The net assets acquired in the transaction, and the
goodwill arising, were as follows:

32. [MMELR(E)

#HE2007F12A 31 BILEE(E)

A.

(%)

m BB 22007412 A831H
HE mHEAAEETRLY
6,649,000 7% 7T YA K 49 583,000
BILZ BB RIEE o

R2007%F1HA1H ' & & B A
#716,618,0008 L 2 IR & K B
NEBZHWETZ2E51% 2
o BREWED R WEE
AR - ZBERBEEZHERN
596,000 7% T °

ZEARGPHBZFEENARA
HELZEESIRMT

Acquiree’s
carrying
amounts before
combinations Fair value
SRR R E adjustments Fair value
ZIRE{E LEERE OFE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Net assets acquired: FiSFEE:
Property, plant and Yz - HEE R
equipment 6,331 11,311 17,642
Other intangible assets HEMmpEE — 14,721 14,721
Inventories 5E 3,137 - 3,137
Bank balances and cash  $RTT4: &k IR & 1,018 - 1,018
Deferred tax liabilities FEBIEAE - (6,508) (6,508)
10,486 19,624 30,010
Minority interests DY R = (13,988)
Goodwill mE 596

16,618
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32. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued) 32. KWHEMBLATEZ)
For the year ended December 31, 2007 (Continued) B E2007F12A31 HILFEE(E)
B. (Continued) B. (#&)
HK$°000
FET
Total consideration satisfied by: BB
Cash -] 12,371
Directly attributable costs BEA D IRKAZ A 4,247
16,618

Net cash outflow in respect of the acquisition is as

follows:
Cash consideration paid BENBRESNRE
Bank balances and cash acquired s 2 IR1ITHEHR KRR S

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of £ was
attributable to the anticipated profitability of the
distribution of the Group’s LPG in the markets and
the anticipated future operating synergies from
the combination. In addition, 2% owned several
LPG stations close to the LPG terminal owned by
¥18 (BK&8), in the opinion of the directors, this
acquisition would enhance logistic efficiency and
improve the market share in Guangdong region in
the PRC.

BRKBHRELEZEESEAR
FRRIAS

2007
—“EEF
HK$’000
FET

(16,618)
1,018

(15,600)

bEZEREEZEHE  IBE
REMSDHEARER(CREH
EHEAFERBRGREEES
ZREE o o BEHEF K
ERCRANTYE - W B R R
BORB)BEBEZRIERTBE - &
AR 4 L TE WK B % o W A AR R
YhEFHEERBE 2 THIEA
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32.

Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)

Pursuant to an agreement entered between Qingxin
NewOcean Transportation Company Limited (“Qingxin
NewOcean”) and the minority shareholder of £ (the
“MI”) on December 29, 2006, Qingxin NewOcean agreed
to subcontracting the operation of £ to the MI for a
period of one year. The sub-contracting arrangement

was terminated at December 31, 2007.

On July 1, 2007, Qingxin NewOcean and the MI
entered into a sales and purchase agreement in
which Qingxin NewOcean agreed to acquire further
39% equity interest from the MI at a consideration
of approximately HK$22,452,000 (the “Agreement”).
The acquisition on further 39% equity interest in £
# has not been completed as at December 31, 2007.
Pursuant to the Agreement, the MI has granted an
option to Qingxin NewOcean to acquire the remaining
10% equity interest from the MI at a consideration
of approximately RMB4,500,000 for the period from
July 1, 2007 to June 30, 2009. In addition, Qingxin
NewOcean has granted an option to the Ml to sell the
remaining 10% equity interest to Qingxin NewOcean at a
consideration of approximately HK$4,806,000 (equivalent
to RMB4,500,000) from the period from July 1, 2009
to July 31, 2009 (“Put Option”). The obligation of the
Put Option was recorded as non-current liabilities as at
December 31, 2007. The obligation of the Put Option
was recorded as current liabilities as at December 31,
2008.

32.

R B AR (&)

WRIEB GG ERFR AR (B %
) gy DERR([DEHRRE])
R2006F 12 H29B H il 2 ik ' /&
BB RBINAZE 2 ¥ T O HAR
R BHEIAF o N H 5 R 2007 F
12 A 31 B#&IE °

R2007FE7 B1B - BE%FHEeE D
BRRFT—HEEHE(HE]) - &
I B SIS R = A4 22,452,000
7S TC #E — 5 WEE D B% BE A9 39% #E
oo i — HUEE B E39% E R
2007 F 12 A31H A K T K ° R &
Wik PEREREBHNEFE AR
20077 A1 H 200946 A30H
- LA A R# 4 500,000 70K 1B U BE
LERERTH10% R - BE 5
TG RE L E R R R 2009 F 7
A1HZE2009%7 A31HH8RE @ &t
T10% #E & B #94,806,000/8 JT(%
B A R ¥ 4,500,0007T) & 5 # &%
Fog([RIEHE 1) - $R2007 F12 A 31
B ZhEs ks EReasE-
200812 31 H » xR EESE (T
WErBREAE -
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32. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)
For the year ended December 31, 2007 (Continued)

Pursuant to the Agreement, the acquisition on further
39% equity interest in 2% has been completed
during the year at a consideration of approximately
HK$22,452,000. The consideration of HK$22,452,000
was paid in the year ended December 31, 2007. The
detail is disclosed in note 22. The amount of goodwill
arising as a result of the further acquisition was
approximately HK$13,741,000. Upon completion of the
above equity acquisition, the Group’s shareholding in £
# was increased from 51% to 90%.

Pursuant to the Agreement, starting from January 1,
2008, the MI sub-contracted the remaining 10% to
Qingxin NewOcean, thus 2% was fully operated by
Qingxin NewOcean. Qingxin NewOcean is responsible
for the daily operation of 2% and accountable for all
liabilities and obligations arising from any agreements
or contracts entered into in the name of £ and the
operating losses, if any. Qingxin NewOcean is entitled
to 100% of the results of ZZE. The Ml was entitled to a
fixed sum of sub-contracting fee payable by the Qingxin
NewOcean. The sub-contracting fee paid to the MI was
approximately HK$671,000 for the year ended December
31, 2008.

32. [MMELR(E)

#E2007F12A 31 BILEE(£E)

RIEWZ - NL422,452,000/8 T 23]
SREWBZSETEINGI% BB RF
N SEAK ° 3% F #722,452,000%8 7T 2 18
TREEREZ2007F12 318 1k
FRAZN - FHEERMF22H 5 - 58
SN B T ZE A 2 P9 B ) & 13,741,000
BT o B Ll EER - AEERE

o Lo

ZEEFBHS1%EINE 90% °

BIEWZ > BH2008F1 A1 B#E  BH
SINERDERRABDBT Z10% @ )
I EZEREN GG DREE - BN%
A ERENRELERATEUNEE
BEFEIIZEMBEIEOMEENE
BEREERLEBEEBE) - BME
FEHEB100% MEE - PEBRRES
BB IBRENCETABER - HE
2008 F 12 A1 BIEFE » I FLH
IRz A BERL A671,000487T °
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33. Disposal of Subsidiaries 33. HEMBATF
On December 10, 2007, the Group disposed of several R2007F12 108 + &N &£ B LA15
subsidiaries to an independent third party with a TRELHEETHEBAR T —BLFE=
consideration of HK$1. Those subsidiaries were engaged o ZEMNBRARIRTREILIHEER D
in LPG sales and distribution in the northern region of HRILR  ZEWNBRARZEEERE
the PRC. The assets of those subsidiaries were fully FFEEERmAE M - ZEHBAF]
impaired or write off in prior years. The net liabilities of REEBZFEERT ¢

the subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as follows:

12.10.2007

TETF

+=A+A

HK$’000

FET

Property, plant and equipment YIS - B R E 2,753

Property, plant and equipment write-offs )% - #%28 & 5% & 2 # 8 (2,753)

Trade debtors, other debtors, deposits EUE SR ~ B ERERK « &S 2,377

and prepayments KIEFIE

Impairment losses on receivables FEW AR FOR B B 18 (2,377)

Other creditors and accrual charges B ER R R ERTE A (170)

Tax liabilities MBEE (7,201)

(7,371)

Gain on disposal HEE 7,371
The subsidiaries disposed of during the year ended R2007F12 A1 H IEFEARNFTH &

December 31, 2007 made no significant contribution to ZHBRRIWEAREB T IRE T &

the Group’s turnover, profit and cash flow. R RIREM o
34. Contingent Liabilities 34. BRAR

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at 2008 K 2007 €12 A31H + &

December 31, 2008 and 2007. EWESEANAREE -
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35. Lease Commitments 35. HE®E
The Group as lessee XEEEREAA
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments REEH  AEBRBETAIHELSEN
for future minimum lease payments under non- EXBEAYMzBER L BT E B
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: HET :
2008 2007
—EZNE —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ETT FAEIT
Within one year —F R 55,604 36,415
In the second to fifth year inclusive T ERFN(BREEERE) 102,808 130,712
Over five years HBERF 4,660 2,401
163,072 169,528
Operating lease payments mainly represent rentals wEHEFREDEEZHRASEEER N
payable by the Group for office premises and LPG RERBREAMEN 2EHE - HEM
vessel. Leases are negotiated for terms ranged from 1 to H £ 19 B1E104F - )R 20084F 12 B
10 years. As at December 31, 2008, rentals are fixed for 31E - EEMHESEERTH AIF
an average of 3 years (2007: 4 years). (2007 : 44F)
36. Other Commitments 36. Hfthakiz
2008 2007
—EBNEF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#iT FEIT

Capital expenditure contracted for but DR AMBR AR A B FE R B
not provided in the consolidated B2 BERRT 2 AN ¢
financial statements in respect of:

Purchase of gas plant and machinery BB RE s 134,245
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37.

38.

Retirement Benefits Plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the schemes are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The
Group and each employee employed in Hong Kong are
required to make a contribution of 5% on the employees’
monthly relevant income with a maximum monthly
contribution of HK$1,000 per person.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute fixed percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit schemes to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the
specified contributions.

Related Party Transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions with related parties:

Sales to a jointly controlled entity
Rental expenses paid to Shum Ho, Neo
(Note)

EEEF ANk
(H1at)

Note: Shum Ho, Neo is the son of Shum Siu Hung and Tong
Shiu Ming.

) — 2k R 4% 1) . B8 8

37.

38.

iR (R AR

AEEABEREECE2BAEREERR
HeablERTE RS - BEEFEICE
EEAEEEESFHFAE  AETAMN
2B - AEETRAZEEEH
FeWANS%EREESHNK - B A
MR ER AT A 1,000 7T ©

AEERTENBAR 2EBEZ NHE
BFHRRERZRREETE - ZEH B
RERBERFEARE S AR B WAL
B E L IR o AR B ENRKE 7T BIH
E— B EREHREHRR -

REALTRS
FRN - AEEEBEATETTIIR
5
2008 2007
—EZNE —ERLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
4,716
456
Hie - TS LIERENBZT ©
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38. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 38.

On May 16, 2004, Sound Management Services Limited,
entered into an office tenancy agreement with Shum Ho,
Neo for the use of office premises provided by Shum
Ho, Neo located on 20th Floor, Times Tower, 393 Jaffe
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong at HK$38,000 per calendar
month for a period of one year commencing May 16,
2004. On May 16, 2005, the agreement was renewed
for two years to May 15, 2007 with the same terms. On
May 16, 2007, the agreement was renewed for one year
to May 15, 2008 with the same terms. On May 16, 2008,
the agreement was renewed for one year to May 15,
2009 with the same terms.

Save as disclosed above and note 25, there were no
other significant transactions with related parties during
the year or significant balances with them at the end of
the year.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of executive directors and other
members of key management during the year was as

follows:
Short-term benefits 5= HAtE A
Post-employment benefits BB ERRIEE BT

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

REALES(E)

R2004E5 8168 FIEEERGAE
RAREZSETVHRAETHLY - UA
70 38,0008 L 205 L R BB B (T
FHEBIBHEHIMERP L2002 HA
=¥ - AR 200455 A 16 B #E
SFAEE—F - R2005F5 168 © %
FA #0322 ¥E FE I 50 B B3 R 4F £ 2007 £ 5
A15H - ®2007 %5416 B ' %
1% 18 FE 15 SR B B 1 £ 22008 F 5 A 15
H > R2008%F5 16 B » 2 #1% 18
JEGEFEHI1 FE 200965 8158 »

BRLA EROPIRE 25 PR BE SN - AN B
MEALTTESEARS @« R BRE TR
REBRERE 2 ENER -

FEEEARZCEM

AEEHRTETRHEMTIEEEARLZ
FEZIADT ¢

2008 2007
—EENE —ERLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
6,018

60

6,078

EERTIZEBEABZHFMAFHNEZE
SRBEARALRTSBEEE -
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39. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the 39. XAFZEEMELFFE
Company
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at KA A 72008 K 2007 F 12 A31H 2
December 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows: TEZEWMBRARERNT :
Proportion of
Place of Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ fully paid up issued/registered
registration/ Class of share capital/ capital held
Name of subsidiary operation share held registered capital by the Company Principal activities
BI/imh/ BRORGE KLRRBERTRE/
WEARRH X Frss 3Rl ks /eREs EMEXEELH IERE
2008 2007
“EINE CE5tE
BFY (Note a) PRC * Registered capital ~ RMB5,000,000 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
BER(Mita) i ¢ AMER 5,000,000 AR HERDHRILR
NewOcean Resources (Singapore) Pte Singapore Ordinary SGD100 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
Ltd. EMR LBk 100 M%7t HERDHRLR
Shenzhen Baorun Liquefield Petroleum PRC * Registered capital  RMB15,000,000 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
(Gas Company Limited HE " AR 15,000,000 A% HERDHRIR

MmERRRERAR

Sound Hong Kong Limited British Virgin Ordinary USD1 100 Investment holding
HEEAERAT Islands Lk 1% REER
ZBENS

Sound Agents Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
MAREAGR LA & LRk 2B and electronic products

HERDBRIRRETER
Sound Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 Trading of electronic
MAEEARAT &b LRk 25T products

BESfEm
Sound Management Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 Providing management
TAEERBERAA &k Rk 2B services to group

companies

mEE R AR M E R RS
Sound Technologies Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS?2 100 Trading of electronic
FANRBRAT Bk LRR 28T products

BESTER
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39. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the 39. XLFZEEMBLTEHE £
Company (Continued)

Proportion of

Place of Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ fully paid up issued/registered
registration/ Class of share capital/ capital held
Name of subsidiary operation share held registered capital by the Company Principal activities
R/ BRETREE FLRRBERTRE/
WEARRE - 3 Fris Rl k3/BREs ERESEELH IERH
2008 2007

Z3B\E TILE

Qingxin Yong Long Gas and Chemical PRC * Registered capital ~ RMB4,280,000 80 Sale and distribution of LPG
Company Limited (“Yong Long') HE AR 4,280,000 AR % HERAHRILR
(Note b)
ENEKERBRAR(XE Wito)
e R RAR AT PRC® Registered capital  HK$6,600,000 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
hE iR 6,600,000 %7 HERABRLA
BB anRaRA PRC® Registered capital  HK$1,400,000 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
hE AR 1,400,000 70 HERAHRILR
ENERRBARAR PRC * Registered capital  HK$1,600,000 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
LN AR 1,600,00070 HERAERIR
BNmEERRBRAR TEMTE)) PRC * Registered capital  RMB500,000 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
(Note fic) ¢ AR 500,000 ARE HERHHERILR
ERETERAARARERE]) PRC * Registered capital  RMB500,000 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
(Note it d) hE AR 500,000 AR HERAHRILR
ME(xs) PRC* Registered capital  USD27,050,000 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
hE AR 27,050,000 0 HERAHRILR
g PRC* Registered capital ~ RMBT7,755,100 51 Sale and distribution of LPG
hE AR 7,755,100 AR HERDHRLR
BMHERRERAR PRC * Registered capital  RMB2,000,000 51 Sale and distribution of LPG
Gl AR 2,000,000 ARE HERHHERILR
[ PRC * Registered capital ~ RMB990,000 100 Sale and distribution of LPG
e - AR 990,000 AR % HERDERILR
* Domestic-invested enterprises
NERZE
# Wholly-owned foreign enterprises

2EIEDRE
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39. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

Notes:

(@) BFY is indirectly held by the Company through the
declarations of trust executed by Cen Ziniu and Li
Canyuan who held the interest in BFY of 90% and 10%
respectively.

(b)  Pursuant to an agreement entered between BFY and the
minority shareholder of Yong Long, (“PRC Investor”), the
operation of Yong Long was sub-contracted to BFY with
a sub-contracting period of 5 years. The PRC Investor
was entitled to a fixed sum of sub-contracting fee payable
of RMB180,000 per year by BFY. BFY entitled to 100%
of the results of Yong Long during the subcontracting
period.

(c) 1EMFE is indirectly held by the Company through
the declarations of trust executed by ZHEt and 2l
¥ who held the interest in BMFE of 20% and 20%
respectively. The remaining interest in #&JM#E is
indirectly held by the Company.

(d) E#B#FEis indirectly held by the Company through
the declarations of trust executed by &F4 and &/
¢ who held the interest in E#&#1/8 of 20% and 20%
respectively. The remaining interest in B#E#&E is
indirectly held by the Company.

Except Sound Hong Kong Limited which is owned
directly by the Company, the above principal subsidiaries
are owned indirectly by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

39. FAFZEERBATIHN )

Hiat -

@ BEFABBHRZTHERTZRTIIVH
SHEBAERAAFMERSE - 2 F
SREBRTABEAE S F90% R
10% s o

) WREBSEFRKELEBE(HEE
BE DRI 2 KEZEBEH
HHEBEEF  ANHAESTE - FRKRE
EFWEEEFEMNZEEIINAHBER(E
% 180,000 ARE) - RINHIEIR - B
B VG KEE100% HEE -

© HBNMHEERBFTRITRENFETL
MERZRAEHARAEERE - F
BT R B/ N 1 45 A H N HT 8 20% 2
o BMNFEHT 2 s h AR A M
BHA -

(d) ERIEEREHZSTFFRENFETL
MERZRAEHARAEERE - F
BITTR BN 15 A BRI 20%
o BRBAER T 2 EAEAAARME
BHA -

BEEEBERATAAAREEHES
S FieEEHE AT R AR TR
B -

2 BB » B F AR B A T s [ A AR
EAIREEBERES

ERBIEEERRIBZTELAEEE
BREBEEZARFIMNBERR - EEER
RIBEMHBARZEHNEBRTT
£ o
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40. Derivative Financial Instruments 40. FTHEMBIR
Major terms of the foreign currency forward contracts INECREIE N 2 EB2IEFT ¢

are summarised as follows:

Notional amount Maturity Exchange rates

ZHEH R R

2008

ZEEN\E

Buy USD55,084,000  January 2, 2009 to April 16, 2009 RMB/USD6.45 to RMB/USD7.11

= A 55,084,000 200941 A2HE 200944 A168 6.45 A\R¥E Ex =711 AR FET
Buy EUR6,288,000 July 10, 2009 RMB/EUR10.33

E A 6,288,000 BT 20094 7H10H 10.33 ARE /BT

2007

—EELF

Buy USD88,957,000 January 11, 2008 to December 22, 2008 RMB/USD6.20 to RMB/USD7.45
B A 88,957,000k C 200841 A11HZE 2008412 A22H 6.20 A\E¥E ETLET.45 ARE FETT
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oh
BB E
Results E 4|
For the year ended December 31,
BE12AALEE
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

“TTEE  —TTRF  —TTRF  —TTLF  ZEEN\F
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000

FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue WA 1,023,782 1,615,479 2,387,531 3,890,225 6,158,614
Profit before taxation BRA AR A 26,161 30,243 43,951 52,559 54,122
Taxation (charge) credit BIE(Z ) WA (6,217) 3,667 179 (2,105) (1,211)
Profit for the year F R F 19,944 33,910 44130 50,454 52,911
Attributable to: FE(EmF)
Equity holders of the VNG £
Company BBA 20,178 35,702 44,130 50,454
Minority interests DER RS (234) (1,792) — —
19,944 33,910 44,130 50,454
Earnings per share SRR EF
Basic (in HK cents) EAR (AL 4.38 7.41 9.16 9.52
Diluted (in HK cents) EE OB N/A
4.33 TiE A 9.16 9.49
Assets and Liabilities SERER
At December 31,
#®12A31H
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

—TTNFE —TERF  —EEXEFE  —ZELFE  ZEENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET

Total assets
Total liabilities

514,113 832,644 1,461,813 2,319,632 WA (AIK]
(1564,776) (442,181)  (1,014,332)  (1,795,689) NER:LPHEL)]

\
A

e

[SES,

5

)
i

e 3
Gt ¢

359,337 390,463 447,481 523,843 717,608

Equity attributable to equity AATZ =B A
holders of the Company JE 1 4 7 354,628 388,932 445,950 513,130 716,077
Minority interests DY R ERS 4,709 1,531 1,531 10,713 1,531

359,337 390,463 447,481 523,843 717,608
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